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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

TR RRE

Dear shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”) of
Sandmartin International Holdings Limited (the “Company’, together with its
subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The year of 2018 was challenging to the Group as our financial results
underperformed due to various factors. The Group streamlined its structure
by rationalizing its manufacturing segment to improve the utilization rate
and efficiency of staff, which included the outsourcing of certain production
processes to external service providers and the termination of production lines
with low efficiency. The Group downsized the manufacturing segment to save
production cost and to reduce internal headcount. For the media segment, the
satellite TV broadcasting business was broadening its subscriber base to attain
a breakeven level. Dish Media Network Limited (‘Dish Media"), the largest pay
television operator in Nepal and a 47.12%-owned associate of the Company,
secured a customer base exceeding a million subscribers and generated
strong demand for our set-top boxes which in turn provided support to the
development of the media entertainment platform related products segment
of the Group. Dish Media also recorded positive revenue growth for the last
5 years. Nevertheless, although the Group is in the process to dispose of its
interests in My HD Media FZ-LLC (“MyHD"), a 51%-owned subsidiary of the
Company, prior to the disposal and during the year ended 31 December
2018, the media segment in the Middle East region has been suffering from
significant losses, which adversely impacted the overall financial performance
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018. On the other hand,
the Group struggled with the changes in product mix to cater for the latest
market appetites and the ongoing competition from other original equipment
manufacturers, especially those from the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
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The Group has also completed its restructuring within the year ended 31
December 2018 by redefining the original workflow of its manufacturing
activities. The Group invited its suppliers to relocate their individual production
facilities as tenants in the Group’s industrial park located in Zhongshan, the
PRC. As a result, our suppliers were also our tenants, thus aligning our business
interests to a certain extent. To save our production costs and reduce our
headcount, certain workflows of our manufacturing activities were outsourced
to these suppliers as well. Besides, in order to mitigate the impact of the
possible trade conflict between the PRC and the United States (the “US”), which
could definitely jeopardize the Group’s export to the US by means of excessive
duties and tariffs, the Group strengthened its supply chain management by
encouraging our suppliers to establish new production facilities in Vietnam
or Taiwan to cope with the production orders of parts and accessories of
our products, serving the purpose of avoiding the tariffs imposed by the US
on products from the PRC. In anticipation of the booming and progressive
digitalization of the pay television market in India and to diversify our capacities
and market coverage, we also strived to relocate certain manufacturing
workflows to India by establishing local production facilities and securing a

foothold in the India market.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group continued to
invest in the satellite TV broadcasting business which is correlated to our
manufacturing and trading of electronic products business. The satellite TV
broadcasting business in the Middle East was still developing its customer
base by purchasing high quality television contents and offering promotional
packages to attract new subscribers, which incurred substantial amounts of
programming and marketing costs inevitably. Since the subscription of new
customers of GOBX (being the project in Saudi Arabia launched by MyHD
in collaboration with Middle East Broadcasting Center (“MBC"), a renowned
broadcaster in the Middle East, was slower than expected as a result of political
instability in Saudi Arabia, the Group revised the projected breakeven of MyHD
to 2020. Given the high running costs-per-subscriber before the subscription
revenue achieved the breakeven point, the Group recorded a segment loss of
HK$228,346,000 from the satellite TV broadcasting segment for the year ended
31 December 2018. After taking the above factors into consideration, the
Group entered into a conditional agreement with an independent third party
for the disposal of its 51% interest in MyHD in December 2018. It is believed
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
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that the disposal could relieve the Group from the heavy financial burden of
providing further financial assistance to MyHD, thus improving our financial
performance. Accordingly, the Group will be able to reallocate more internal
financial resources to our manufacturing businesses so as to generate a higher
revenue for the Shareholders.

On 5 May 2017, the Company received an originating summons against the
Company under action number HCMP 1044/2017 in the High Court of Hong
Kong (the “High Court”) for inspecting and making copies of documents
in connection with the open offers announced on 24 October 2016 and 20
March 2017 and our investment projects. The Company received a related
order granted by the Court of Appeal of Hong Kong on 15 May 2018 under
action number CACV 240/2017, ordering that the appeal against the court
order dated 17 October 2017 be dismissed and all costs of and occasioned by
the appeal be to the Plaintiff. On 6 July 2017, the Company received a petition
dated 5 July 2017 against the Company and other parties under action number
HCCW 207/2017 for the winding-up of the Company. Finally, the High Court
granted an order on 7 January 2019 that the petition presented on 5 July 2017
be dismissed. Since the above actions have come to an end, the management
of the Group will be able to concentrate their time and effort on our business

operation, which is certainly beneficial to the Group.

Going forward, the Company believes that the growth of the Group will
depend on business opportunities arising from new 5G peripherals and related
products. In anticipation of such business opportunity, the Group's research
and development team is developing new 5G related products with reference
to the market trend, such as small cell technology and networks. New products
under development include next generation radio frequency and antenna
products. The Group's research and development team is working on these
products in the research center in Hsinchu, Taiwan. Hopefully, the Group'’s new
5G related products will bring about more business opportunities as well as
revenue and profits.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
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Looking ahead, given the restructuring of our operation by focusing on the
manufacturing segment and the launch of new products, including retractable
chargers, we are optimistic on the future development of the Group despite
the uncertain impact to be brought about by the possible trade conflicts
between the PRC and the US in the coming year. The Group has been
distributing quality products for the pay television industry across the globe
for three decades. We are committed to strengthening our brand name with
enhanced brand management strategies for the purpose of creating the
greatest value for our Shareholders.

However, in addition to elevated geo-political and geo-economic tensions,
disputes on international trade arising from protectionism are yet to be settled
through negotiations, thereby clouding the general economic landscape
with uncertainties and financial risks. Given these volatilities and challenges,
the Group will make every endeavour to identify business opportunities with
promising potential in the manufacturing segment or even other sectors so as
to diversify our income source to weather the possible adverse cycle. With the
dedicated management and execution capabilities of our top management
team, the Group remains confident in seizing the opportunities amidst the
challenging landscape.

All in all, we are thankful for the patience and continuous support from
our dedicated employees, the management, invaluable business partners,
Shareholders and investors. We look forward to sharing the rewards ahead with
you.

Lau Yau Cheung
Chairman
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FEMEBELREEEN WEDN

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group recorded a significant decrease in gross profit from 4.97% for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to 1.23% for the year ended 31 December 2018
due to the subscription revenue of the satellite TV broadcasting segment not
being able to cover the substantial amount of the programming costs incurred
for the satellite TV broadcasting business. Programming costs included
payment for content fees, renting satellite channels and transponders and
purchase of set-top boxes. The gross profit margin of the Group excluding the
satellite TV broadcasting segment slightly decreased from 13.29% for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to 11.56% for the year ended 31 December 2018

MEDIA ENTERTAINMENT PLATFORM RELATED
PRODUCTS

In 2018, the Group’s media entertainment platform related products segment
faced a fierce market competition from other set-top box manufacturers in
the PRC. In response to the fierce market competition and the surge in raw
material prices, the Group explored new business opportunities in other
locations, such as South Asia; and redesigned the set-top boxes and ancillary
chargers to reduce material costs. With the strong demand of set-top boxes
from Dish Media, the revenue of this segment was able to increase by 44.05%
as compared with the year ended 31 December 2017.

—  Segment revenue of media entertainment platform related products

was approximately HK$341,714,000 (2017: HK$237,214,000).

—  Segment results from operations were approximately HK$28,771,000
(2017: HK$30,868,000).

—  Segment margin was 8.42% which was decreased by 4.59 percentage-
point as compared with segment margin of 13.01% in 2017.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EHHE NEEEN W ED T #E)

Outlook

The market competition is fierce due to the direct competition from other set-
top box manufacturers in the PRC, and the surge in raw material prices which
reduced the profit margin of the products. The Group is exploring new markets
for its set-top boxes, such as customers in South Asia and East Europe and
will leverage its existing distribution channels for the cross-selling of “Philips”
brand licensed products in India. Meanwhile, the Group is redesigning its set-
top boxes to reduce the material costs so as the impact from the surge of raw
material prices. The China-United States trade war is not expected to have
material adverse impact on this segment as the Group does not have set-top

boxes customers in the US.

OTHER MULTIMEDIA PRODUCTS

In 2018, although the market competition remained intense, we have
enhanced our product portfolio and reduced the product costs by outsourcing
and supply chain integration, so the Group’s other multimedia products
segment was able to maintain its profitability. Major products of this segment
included high definition multimedia interface ("HDMI") cables, multimedia
accessories, external batteries, retractable chargers and wireless mobile phone
chargers for vehicles. Segment results increased by 41.33% due to the increase
in profit margin for the electronic products amidst the fierce competition in
the industry.

—  Segment revenue of other multimedia products was approximately
HK$293,067,000 (2017: HK$260,280,000).

—  Segment results from operations were approximately HK$25,912,000
(2017: HK$18,335,000).

—  Segment margin was 8.84% which was increased by 1.80 percentage-
point as compared with the segment margin of 7.04% in 2017.

Outlook

We are enhancing our product portfolio and developing new businesses. New
products, such as retractable chargers and wireless mobile phone chargers
have been launched to the market since the second half of 2018. The China-
United States trade war has some impact on this segment as some of the
customers are in the US. We are trying to minimize the impact by sourcing

from suppliers outside the PRC, such as India and Vietnam.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EXHHE NEEEN W ED T #E)

SATELLITE TV EQUIPMENT AND ANTENNA PRODUCTS
Low noise blocking down converters (“LNB”) are receiving devices mounted on
satellite dishes used for reception, which collect microwaves from the satellite
dishes and facilitate the transmission of satellite television signals. Due to the
change of business strategy by one of the major customers of this segment,
this customer decided not to place further orders for the latest model of LNBs
after the completion of their delivery in the first half of 2018, but switched
to a preceding model of LNBs. As it took time for the Group to resume the
production of the preceding model of LNBs, this contributed to the decrease in
revenue in 2018. In the fourth quarter of 2018, the Group resumed the delivery
of LNBs to this customer. Hence, the revenue of this segment showed a 34.39%

decrease compared with the year ended 31 December 2017.

—  Segment revenue of satellite TV equipment and antenna products was
approximately HK$643,167,000 (2017: HK$980,263,000).

—  Segment results from operations were approximately HK$47,958,000
(2017: HK$106,425,000).

—  Segment margin was 7.46%, decreased by 3.40 percentage-point as
compared with the segment margin of 10.86% for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Outlook

For the year of 2018, the profitability of this segment showed a decline. Apart
from the sales of LNBs to the customers in North America, we are exploring
business opportunities in other areas such as cross-selling LNBs to other
existing customers of the Group in South Asia. The China-United States trade
war has some impact on this segment as some of the customers are in the US.
We are trying to minimize the impact by relocating some productions to India

and sourcing from suppliers outside the PRC.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EHHE NEEEN W ED T #E)

SATELLITE TV BROADCASTING

The significant loss from operations in this segment was due to the high
running costs-per-subscriber before subscription revenue reached break-
even. The satellite TV broadcasting business had to build up customer bases
by purchasing high quality and highly demanded television content and
promoting them to new subscribers. It incurred substantial amounts of
programming costs including payment for content fees, renting satellite
transponders, purchase of set-top boxes and payment for dealers’ commission
for marketing and promotion.

—  Segment revenue of satellite TV broadcasting was approximately
HK$22,410,000 (2017: HK$65,862,000).

—  Segment losses from operations were approximately HK$228,346,000
(2017: HK$147,971,000).

—  Segment loss margin was 1,018.95% which is increased by 794.28
percentage-point as compared with 224.67% for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Outlook

The growth in the subscriber base of MyHD was low despite having poured
large amount of resources in this segment by the Group. Having made due
and careful consideration of the uncertainty of future profitability of MyHD and
the heavy financial burden of the Group, the Board decided to dispose all the
Company's interest in MyHD. On 31 December 2018 after trading hours of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Health General
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the “Vendor”) and Mr.
Chen Yaoning (the “Purchaser”) entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital
of Speed Connection Group Limited (the “Target Company”), at the nominal
consideration of USS1 with effect from 1 January 2019 (the “Transaction
Date”). The Target Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
at the date of the Agreement, the Target Company indirectly held 51% equity
interest in MyHD.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EXHHE NEEEN W ED T #E)

The Vendor and the Purchaser have agreed that subject to completion of the
disposal of the Target Company (“Completion”), the Purchaser shall assume
all rights, liabilities and obligations of the Target Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Target Group") arising or accruing on and after the Transaction Date.
Accordingly, if Completion takes place, the Target Group shall cease to be
subsidiaries of the Company with effect from the Transaction Date and as a
result, the financial results of the Target Group shall no longer be consolidated
into the financial statements of the Group with effect from the Transaction
Date and the Group shall cease to recognize the results of the satellite TV

broadcasting segment.

GEOGRAPHICAL RESULTS

AFRICA

—  Segment revenue of Africa for the year ended 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$6,659,000, compared with the year ended 31
December 2017 which was approximately HK$12,973,000.

—  48.68% decrease in segment revenue compared with the year ended 31
December 2017.

—  Africa shares 0.51% total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: 0.84%).

ASIA

—  Segment revenue of Asia for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$347,074,000, compared with the year ended 31
December 2017 which was approximately HK$176,252,000.

—  96.92% growth in segment revenue compared with the year ended 31
December 2017.

—  Asia shares 26.69% total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: 11.41%).
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EHHMENEEEN WD)

EUROPE

Segment revenue of Europe for the year ended 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$200,402,000, compared with the year ended 31
December 2017 which was approximately HK$198,355,000.

1.03% growth in segment revenue compared with the year ended 31
December 2017.

Europe shares 15.41% total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: 12.84%).

MIDDLE EAST

Segment revenue of Middle East for the year ended 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$48,230,000, compared with the year ended 31
December 2017 which was approximately HK$96,091,000.

49.81% decline in segment revenue compared with the year ended 31

December 2017.

Middle East shares 3.71% total revenue of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: 6.22%).

NORTH AMERICA

Segment revenue of North America for the year ended 31 December
2018 was approximately HK$679,903,000, compared with the year ended
31 December 2017 which was approximately HK$1,000,050,000.

32.01% drop in segment revenue compared with the year ended 31
December 2017.

North America shares 52.29% total revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 64.73%).
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EHEHME NEREE WD)

SOUTH AMERICA

—  Segment revenue of South America for the year ended 31 December
2018 was approximately HK$15,108,000, compared with the year ended
31 December 2017 which was approximately HK$59,491,000.

—  74.60% drop in segment revenue compared with the year ended 31
December 2017.

—  South America shares 1.16% total revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 3.85%).

Outlook

As our business in Europe, North America and Asia have continued to attain
good performance and share majority of our Group's revenue, therefore we
shall focus on these regions in future.

DISPOSAL OF ALL INTERESTS IN MYHD AND
CONTINUATION OF LOANS AND GUARANTEE

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 31 December
2018 (the “Announcement’). On 31 December 2018 after trading hours of the
Stock Exchange, the Vendor and the Purchaser entered into the Agreement
pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital
of the Target Company, at the nominal consideration of US$1 with effect from
the Transaction Date.

The Target Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
indirectly holds 51% interests in MyHD. As at the date of the Agreement, there
were existing loans in the aggregate amount of US$80,091,342.23 (the “Existing
Loans”) owing by the Target Company and/or MyHD (as the case may be) to
the Company and/or SMT Hong Kong Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) ("SMT") (as the case may be). The Vendor had agreed with the
Purchaser under the Agreement to procure that the Existing Loans shall continue
to be advanced by the Company or SMT (as the case may be) to the Target
Company and/or MyHD (as the case may be) under the existing arrangements
notwithstanding Completion taking place. It is also the current intention of the
Vendor and the Purchaser that the letter of guarantee dated 30 October 2016
given by the Company in favour of MyHD (the “Guarantee”) shall continue
for the time being after Completion. It is expected that the maximum amount
payable by the Company under the Guarantee would not exceed US$2,600,000.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EHHE NEEEN W ED T #E)

The Vendor and the Purchaser have agreed that subject to Completion,
the Purchaser will assume all rights, liabilities and obligations of the Target
Group arising or accruing on and after the Transaction Date. Accordingly, if
Completion takes place, the Target Group will cease to be subsidiaries of the
Company with effect from the Transaction Date and as a result, the financial
results of the Target Group will no longer be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group with effect from the Transaction Date.

The Group has been experiencing heavy financial burden and has been
obtaining borrowings from financial institutions for its daily operation. Given
the uncertainty of the future profitability of the Target Group and if the Group
intends to keep MyHD and to have sufficient funding for its operation, then
the Group will need to provide further financial assistance to the Target Group
before subscription revenue of the Target Group is expected to breakeven in
2020. As such, the Disposal will relieve the Group from the provision of further
financial assistance to the Target Group. The Directors are of the view that the
Disposal will relieve the financial burden of the Group.

The Vendor had agreed with the Purchaser under the Agreement to procure
that the Existing Loans shall continue to be advanced by the Company or SMT
(as the case may be) to the Target Company and/or MyHD (as the case may be)
under the existing arrangements notwithstanding Completion taking place.
Such arrangement confers the right to the Company or SMT (as the case may
be) to receive the payments for the Existing Loans from the Target Company
and/or MyHD (as the case may be) when the financial positions of the Target
Company and/or MyHD (as the case may be) improve and have sufficient cash
to settle the Existing Loans.

It is the current intention of the Vendor and the Purchaser that the Guarantee
shall continue for the time being after Completion. Such arrangement will
enable MyHD to secure continuing supply of television contents from MBC FZ
LLC which is one of the foundations for the normal operation of MyHD and is
essential for the Completion of the Disposal.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EXHHE NEEEN W ED T #E)

At the date of approval of this report, the circular containing, among other
things, the (i) details of the Disposal, the Existing Loans, the Guarantee and
the Agreement; (i) a notice of the SGM; and (jii) other information as required
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) is pending to be dispatched to the Shareholders.

DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

On 19 December 2017, the Group entered into the preliminary agreement
with Eastern Beauty Global Limited for the sale and purchase of the office
properties in Hong Kong (the “Property”) at a consideration of approximately
HK$97,396,000 (the “Disposal of Investment Properties”). Details of the
Disposal of Investment Properties are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 19 December 2017.

Starting from November 2013, the Property was classified as investment
property of the Group and was leasing out to generate rental income. The
Company had the intention to dispose of the Property since mid of February
2017 because the Group has been experiencing heavy financial burden.
Having regard the market conditions and the financial performance of the
Group, the Directors are of the view that the Disposal of Investment Properties
represented a good opportunity for the Group to realise its investment in the
Property for a reasonable return and to reduce the financial burden of the
Group by repayment of the borrowings to the financial institutions.

The Disposal of Investment Properties was completed on 28 March 2018 and
the net proceed of HK$97,346,000 from the Disposal of Investment Properties
(net of transaction cost of HK$50,000) were used for repayment of borrowings

and as general working capital of the Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
81 %5 [0l A

REVENUE

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$1,300.4
million, representing a decline of 15.82% compared with HKS$1,544.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The decrease in revenue was mainly due
to the underperformance of the Group’s satellite TV equipment and antenna
products segment during the year.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
Loss attributable to Shareholders was approximately HK$187.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 representing an increase of 77.13%, compared
with approximately HK$105.8 million for year ended 31 December 2017.
The loss mainly arose from the loss absorbed from the Group's satellite TV
broadcasting segment as the subscription revenue was not able to cover the
programming costs of the satellite TV broadcasting.

LOSS PER SHARE

Calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
based on the loss attributable to Shareholders and the weighted average
number of 3,278,825,335 (2017: 2,352,317,330) ordinary shares in issue during
the year. Basic loss per share was 5.7 HK cents for 2018, as compared with 4.5
HK cents for the year ended 31 December 2017.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group's finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$32.4 million, compared to approximately HK$27.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The increase in finance costs was mainly
due to the increase in the average interest rates in banks and other borrowings
and the increase in banks and other borrowings to finance MyHD during the
year of 2018.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HKS$3.7
million (for the year ended 31 December 2017: approximately HK$8.8 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
B %5 Bl B8 (48

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Calculation of net asset value per share was based on the net asset value of the
Group of HK$34.1 million (2017: HK$316.8 million) and 3,278,825,335 ordinary
shares issued at 31 December 2018 (2017: 3,278,825,335 ordinary shares). Net
asset value per share at 31 December 2018 was HK$0.01 (2017: HKS0.097).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 December 2018, an overall cash and cash equivalent of the Group was
HKS$72.7 million (2017: HK$132.4 million). The Group’s major financial resources
derived from cash generated from financing activities and investing activities.

The Group's current ratio (ratio of current assets to current liabilities) was 0.73
at 31 December 2018 (2017: 0.93).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's total borrowings were approximately
HKS$466.5 million (2017: HK$402.4 million). The gearing ratio (total borrowings
over total assets of the Group) increased from 31.25% at 31 December 2017 to
42.55% at 31 December 2018

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s general banking facilities including bank
loans and other borrowings were secured by the following assets of the Group:
(i) bank deposits of HKS1.6 million; (i) property, plant and equipment with a
carrying value of HK$30.7 million; (iii) investment properties of HK$149.7 million;
(iv) trade receivables of HK$56.3 million; (v) inventory of HK$55.9 million; and (vi)
pledge of the Company’s interests in Pro Brand Technology, Inc.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 777 (2017: 1,526) full-
time employees. Employees are remunerated according to their performance
and responsibilities. Employees of the Group receive training depending on their
scope of work, especially those training relating to workplace health and safety.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group'’s sales and purchases were denominated mainly in US dollars
and Renminbi (‘RMB"). The Group was exposed to certain foreign currency
exchange risks but it does not expect future currency fluctuations to cause
material operation difficulties on the ground that the recent pressure from
appreciation of RMB was manageable. However, management continuously
assesses the foreign exchange risks, with an aim to minimise the impact of
foreign exchange fluctuations on business operations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).

LITIGATIONS

HCMP 1044/2017

The Company was served an originating summons under section 740 of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) (the “Summons”) on 5 May 2017 filed by Fung
Chuen as the plaintiff (the “Plaintiff’) against the Company as the defendant
under action number HCMP No.1044/2017 in the High Court of Hong Kong
(the “Court”). Details of the Summons are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 5 May 2017.

In the Summons, the Plaintiff applied to the Court for, among others, the
following orders (the “Application”):

(i) The Plaintiff and/or his authorised agent be authorised to inspect and
make copies of the documents in relation to the investment in Dish
Media and the debtors;

(i) The Plaintiff and/or his authorised agent be authorised to inspect and
make copies of the documents in relation to the investment in MyHD;
and

(i) The Plaintiff and his authorised agent be authorised to inspect and make
copies of the documents in relation to the open offers announced by
the Company on 24 October 2016 and 20 March 2017 respectively.
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Pursuant to the order of the Court dated 17 October 2017 (the “Order dated
17 October 2017"), it was ordered that the Company shall produce to the
Plaintiff those documents listed in the schedule of the Order dated 17 October
2017. On 27 October 2017, the Company filed a notice of appeal (the “Notice
of Appeal”) to the Court for a stay of execution of the Order dated 17 October
2017 pending the final determination of the appeal.

On 15 December 2017, the Court held that the appeal had no reasonable
prospect of success and ordered that the Company’s application for stay be
refused but that the time for the Company to comply with the Order dated 17
October 2017 be extended to 5 January 2018

On 22 December 2017, the Company amended its Notice of Appeal and
applied to the Court of Appeal of Hong Kong for a stay of execution of the
Order dated 17 October 2017 pending final determination of the appeal (the
“Stay Application”). Pursuant to order dated 22 December 2017, an interim
stay of the Order dated 17 October 2017 pending determination of the Stay
Application was granted.

At the hearing held on 17 April 2018, the appeal of the Stay Application under
action number CACY 240 of 2017 by the Company was dismissed by the Court
of Appeal of Hong Kong and the costs of the Stay Application was awarded
to the Plaintiff. On 11 May 2018, the Company had complied with the Order
and produced the documents as listed in the schedule of the Order dated 17
October 2017 to the Plaintiff.
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HCCW 207/2017

On 6 July 2017, the Company was served a petition for winding-up dated 5
July 2017 (the “Winding-Up Petition’) filed by Fung Chuen (the “Petitioner”)
against the Company, Mr. Hung Tsung Chin (the “2nd Respondent”’) and
Ms. Chen Mei Huei (the “3rd Respondent”) in the proceedings HCCW
No0.207/2017.

Pursuant to the Winding-Up Petition, the Petitioner petitioned for (i) an order
that the Company be wound up by the Court under section 327(3)(c) of the
Companies (Winding-Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap.32)
(the “CWUMPQ") of the Laws of Hong Kong; (i) an order that a liquidator be
appointed by the Court to investigate into the affairs of the Company upon the
winding-up of the Company; (iii) an order that the 2nd Respondent and/or the
3rd Respondent do account to the Company for such payments or dispositions
which they had procured to be made for their own benefit and/or for the
benefit of entities substantially owned or controlled by them and/or other than
for the Company’s proper purpose and operation of its business; (iv) an order
that costs of the Petitioner and the Company be paid by the 2nd Respondent
and the 3rd Respondent; and (v) such other order as the Court thinks fit and
appropriate.

On 10 July 2017, a summons to apply for a validation order was issued by
the Company, 2nd and 3rd Respondents. At the hearing held on 17 August
2017, a validation order was granted by the Court on the terms as follows: the
following disposition of property and transfer of shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) shall not be void by virtue of the provisions of section 182 of the
CWUMPQ: (a) payment made (or to be made) into and out of the Company’s
bank account in the ordinary course of business of the Company between the
date of presentation of the Winding-Up Petition and the date of judgment on
the Winding-Up Petition; (b) disposition of property of the Company made (or
to be made) in the ordinary course of business for proper value between the
date of presentation of the Winding-Up Petition and the date of judgment
on the Winding-Up Petition; and (c) allotment and issuance of 1,967,295,201
Shares pursuant to the open offer announced by the Company on 20 March
2017 and use of the proceeds therefrom by the Company. The Court has also
ordered the Petitioner to pay the costs of the validation order to the Company
and the 2nd Respondent and the 3rd Respondent (the “Respondents”).
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On 30 August 2017, the Company applied for another validation order under

section 182 of the CWUMPO, which provides that any transfer of the Shares

shall not be void by virtue of the said section. The validation order was also
granted by the Court on 25 October 2017.

On 4 December 2017, the Company filed and served its points of defence.

At the case management hearing held on 25 April 2018, the Court made an
order that:

22

the Petitioner, the Company, the 2nd Respondent and the 3rd
Respondent (collectively the “Winding-Up Petition Parties”) do file and
serve their respective list of documents within 42 days after the date
thereof, with inspection to be conducted within 7 days thereafter;

the Winding-Up Petition Parties do file and exchange signed witness
statements as to fact within 70 days thereafter, i.e. by 22 August 2018;

the Winding-Up Petition Parties do file and exchange such witness
statements in reply (if any) within 28 days thereafter, i.e. by 19 September
2018;

the witness statements filed with the Court do stand as evidence-in-

chief unless the trial judge directs otherwise;
the Winding-Up Petition Parties shall obtain counsel’s advice (if

necessary) by 28 November 2018; and all interlocutory applications if so
advised, shall be taken out within 42 days thereafter;

the Winding-Up Petition Parties shall attend a case management hearing
on a date to be fixed in consultation with counsel’s diaries not earlier
than September 2018 with 30 minutes reserved;

there be liberty to apply; and

costs be in the course.
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On 27 September 2018, the Winding-Up Petition Parties filed and exchanged

the witness statements.

At the case management hearing held on 25 October 2018, the Court made an

order that:

1.

the time for the exchange of the witness statement in reply by the
Petitioner be extended to 5:00 p.m. on 30 November 2018;

leave be given to the Winding-Up Petition Parties to set down the matter
for trial, with an estimate of 2 days before a bilingual judge;

subject to the direction of the trial judge, witness statements of the
Winding-Up Petition Parties are to stand as evidence-in-chief;

there be a pre-trial review 2 months before the trial is due to commence;

the Winding-Up Petition Parties are to agree on English translation, or
obtain certified English translation of such documents in Chinese as may

be necessary;

the Respondents are to lodge the trial bundles with the Court 2 weeks
before the trial;

written opening submissions and list of authorities of the Petitioner
be lodged and served on all the other Winding-Up Petition Parties 7
working days before the trial;

written opening submissions and lists of authorities of the Respondents
be lodged and served on all the other Winding-Up Petition Parties 3

working days before the trial;

any application for time be made before 5:00 p.m. on 26 November
2018; and

costs be in the cause.
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After an amicable negotiation with the Petitioner, on 21 December 2018,

the Company, the Petitioner, the 2nd Respondent and the 3rd Respondent,

without admission of any liability, entered into a settlement agreement (the

“Settlement Agreement”). Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the

Winding-Up Petition Parties have agreed to a full and final settlement of all the
disputes of and in the relation to the proceedings in HCCW 207/2017, HCMP

1044/2017 and CACV 240/201

7 (the "Proceedings and Disputes”).

The principal terms of the Settlement Agreement are as follows:

(@)

24

the Company shall, within 7 days from 21 December 2018, pay the sum
of HK$1,800,000 (the “Sum”) to the Petitioner in full and final settlement
of all disputes, claims, or potential claims, in or arising out of or in
connection with the Proceedings and Disputes;

the Petitioner shall execute a consent summons with the Company
for the dismissal of the Winding-Up Petition with no order as to costs
(the “Consent Summons”), and an undertaking not to take any action
against the Company and/or the existing or former Directors in relation
to the Proceedings and Disputes (the “Undertaking”);

the Winding-Up Petition Parties agree and acknowledge that the
payment of the Sum by the Company shall be in full and final settlement
of all disputes, claims, actions, interests or costs among the Winding-
Up Petition Parties, including those in the Proceedings and Disputes,
accrued before and/or after 21 December 2018. Each Winding-Up
Petition Party shall bear his own legal costs of and incidental to the
negotiation, preparation, execution and carrying into effect of the
Settlement Agreement; and

upon the performance of the Settlement Agreement, the Winding-Up
Petition Parties irrevocably and unconditionally fully and forever release
and discharge each other from and waive any and all claims, demands,
actions, causes of actions, contracts, obligations, debts, costs or liability
of any kind, whether direct or indirect, known or unknown, foreseen
or unforeseen, prospective or contingent or actual, present or future,
arising or capable of arising out of, or in any way connected with the
Proceedings and Disputes, including those accrued before and/or after
21 December 2018
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As at 21 December 2018, the Petitioner had executed the Consent Summons
and the Undertaking.

Upon the joint application of the Petitioner, the Company and the 2nd and 3rd
Respondents by way of consent summons dated 21 December 2018, the Court
had granted an order on 7 January 2019 that:

1. the Winding-Up Petition presented on 5 July 2017 be dismissed;

2. the costs of the Official Receiver be deducted from the deposits and the
balance be returned to the Petitioner; and

3. there be no order as to costs in the action, including the Consent
Summons application.

A sealed copy of the said order was received by the Company on 17 January
2019. At the date of approval of this report, there is no outstanding winding-up
petition against the Company.

ARBITRATION

On 29 September 2011, the Group entered into a conditional agreement (the
“Conditional Agreement”) with an independent individual third party (the
“Original Shareholder”) and Technosat Technology JLT FZE (“Technosat”,
a company incorporated in Dubai, which was wholly owned by the Original
Shareholder), to subscribe for 375 new shares in Technosat at a cash
consideration of US$7,500,000 (equivalent to HK$58,170,000), amounting to
15% of Technosat's enlarged capital. Technosat is set up to be engaged in
operation of digital TV and radio platform, pay TV channel, and sales and supply
of TV set top boxes.
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As at 30 June 2012, the Group had paid a deposit of US$2,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$19,467,000) to Technosat to acquire new shares in Technosat which
was fully provided for impairment in the financial year ended 30 June 2012.
Pursuant to the terms of the Conditional Agreement, the Group is required to
pay a further sum of US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription of this 15%
equity interest in Technosat. The subscription is not yet completed up to the
date of approval of this report as the conditions precedent of the subscription
of new shares in Technosat including the consent and approval by government
authority in Dubai have not been fulfilled.

Despite the Group's repeated request for information, there has been
no satisfactory response from the Original Shareholder or Technosat
("Counterparties”) regarding the current status and the procurement of
obtaining government approval from the government authority in Dubai. The
Group has engaged legal counsel to act for the Group and started dispute
resolution proceedings against the Original Shareholder and Technosat.

On 21 January 2013, the legal counsel of the Original Shareholder and
Technosat served a notice to the Group’s legal counsel for a claim on the
further payment of US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription of this 15%
equity interest in Technosat. The Group's legal counsel has replied on behalf
of the Group on 11 February 2013 in response to the claim of the Original
Shareholder and Technosat defending the claim as the Directors consider such
claim invalid, as the conditions precedent of the subscription of new shares in
Technosat had not been fulfilled and constituted a breach of the Conditional
Agreement.

The Group's legal counsel had repeatedly requested the Original Shareholder
and Technosat to commence the next step of the mediation process, but
there has been no satisfactory response from the legal counsel of the Original
Shareholder and Technosat up to the deadline set by August 2014. At the date
of approval of this report, the Group’s legal counsel confirmed that there was
no update on the arbitration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERRE

The Group continues to improve its corporate governance practices,
emphasizing the attainment and maintenance of a quality Board, sound risk
management and internal controls, and high transparency and accountability
to the Shareholders. The Board and the management are committed to
the principles of good corporate governance consistent with prudent
management and enhancement of shareholder value. The Board believes that
good corporate governance will bring long-term benefits to the Shareholders
and the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has applied the
principles and has complied with the code provisions (“Code Provision(s)")
of the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate Governance Code”) as
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for certain deviations as
specified and explained below with considered reasons for such deviations.

1. Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and

other non-executive directors should attend general meetings.

Messrs. Kuo Jen Hao, a non-executive Director, Li Chak Hung and Wu
Chia Ming, both independent non-executive Directors, were unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 12 June
2018 due to other engagements.

2. Under Code Provision C.1.2, management should provide all members of
the board with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the issuer’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail to enable the board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties under rule 3.08 and chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

The Group completed its restructuring by redefining the original
workflow of its manufacturing activities, including but not limited to
outsourcing production processes to external service providers, and
reducing headcount of the Group to a sustainable level with higher
efficiency. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the management
had provided all members of the Board with updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospect on a proactive and as requested basis.
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3. Under Code Provision C.2.5, the issuer should have an internal audit

function.

Following the appointment of the new internal audit manager in
February 2018, he has taken up the internal audit function. As the
internal audit manager put his priority on upgrading the existing
internal controls to risk-based system for major operating cycles of
the Group’s business, the effectiveness of the internal control systems
of the Group will be tested after the update and key control points
has been completed and set up respectively. Besides, the Group also
engaged an internal control review advisor to perform a special review
on the Group’s key internal control procedures to assist the Board and
management of the Group to evaluate the effectiveness of the internal
control systems.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors. After specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard regarding securities transactions set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 31 December 2018, the Board consists of two executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Hung Tsung Chin and Mr. Chen Wei Chun (chief financial officer),
one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Kuo Jen Hao and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (chairman), Mr. Li Chak
Hung and Mr. Wu Chia Ming. An updated list of the Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the
Company respectively.

Mr. Hung Tsung Chin is the husband of Ms. Chen Mei Huei, a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company and the chief executive officer in the satellite
TV broadcasting business of the Group (“Satellite Broadcasting Services
Business Division”). Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors has
or maintained any family relationship with any of the other Directors.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and calibre
for their views to carry weight. The functions of independent non-executive
Directors include:

bringing an independent view and judgment at Board meetings;
taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
serving on board committees if invited; and

scrutinizing the Company's performance and monitoring performance

reporting.

The independent non-executive Directors have made a positive contribution
to the development of the Company’s strategies and policies through
independent, constructive and informed comments. They benefit the Board
and the board committees by their skills, expertise, varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and active participation at the
meetings of the Board and the board committees.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the independent non-executive
Directors are identified, in all corporate communications to the Shareholders.

Confirmation of Independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has been
assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has made an annual written confirmation
of independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is
of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines
for assessing independence set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent.
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Roles and Functions of the Board and the Management

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Company;
and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs. The Board is fully responsible for the formulation of business policies
and strategies in relation to the business operation of the Group, including
dividend policy and risk management strategies. The management is
delegated the authority and responsibilities by the Board for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group.

Appointment, Continuation of Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

All executive Directors have entered into service agreements with the
Company while the non-executive Director and all independent non-executive
Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the Company with
a specific term of three years, setting out key terms and conditions of their
appointments. All Directors are subject to retirement in accordance with the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”).

According to the Bye-Laws, (i) Directors appointed by the Board either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election; and (ii) at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not greater than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. As such, no Directors have a
term of appointment longer than three years.
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Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors have made active
contribution to the affairs of the Group and 12 Board meetings were held
to consider, among other things, various transactions contemplated by the
Group including but not limited to the disposal of all interests of MyHD and
fundraising exercise, and to review and approve the interim results and annual

results of the Group and inter-company loans.

Further, on 13 December 2018, the Board has approved and adopted a
dividend policy. The Company aims to deliver reasonable and sustainable
returns to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board takes into account, inter alia:

(i) the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(i) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group;

(i)  the Group’'s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

(iv)  the Group's liquidity position;

(v)  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal and external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company;

(vi)  the Shareholders' and the investors’ expectation;

(vii)  the industry’s norm; and

(viii) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

However, there can be no assurance that dividends will be proposed or
declared in any particular amount for any given period.
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Attendance Record of Directors

The attendance record of Directors at the meetings of the Board, the board
committees and the Shareholders held during the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out below:

EETHFTH
NTRBEZE-_ZF-NF+_A=+—BLFEE
EHFEZged EFRBegARERE
B B

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
ES293 BNZE09E REZE99E FHzEge BRERAE
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings
attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
meetingsheld  meetingsheld ~ meetingsheld ~ meetingsheld ~ meetings held
HEEEN HEEEN HEEEN HEEEN HEEEN
¢ VL Ii) R/ BT R/ BT R/ BT RE/ BT
Name of Directors EENE =k LR =k LR =k LR =E LR =E LR
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin AR 1212 N/A i N/A i N/A i 11
Mr. Chen Wei Chun BREHLE 12/12 N/A i F N/A 38 A N/A 8 A 11
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Kuo Jen Hao BAFEE 12/12 N/ATRE N/ATR & A N/ATR & A 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Chairman) AL E(ZE) 1212 5/5 1/1 22 1/1
Mr. Li Chak Hung FEELE 1212 5/5 1/1 22 0N
Mr. Wu Chia Ming REPESE 12/12 5/5 1/1 22 0/1
Access to Information ERFEHR

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that may
have affected the Group’s business, including those changes to relevant rules
and regulations and are able to make further enquiries when necessary. The
Board has also agreed that the Directors may seek independent professional

advice in performing their directors’ duties at the Company’s expense.
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Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against the Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage

is reviewed on an annual basis.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company organized a
training session for all Directors on 31 October 2018. Such training session
covered updates on the Listing Rules, connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions. Reading materials were provided to the Directors on
the latest developments or updates in directors’ duties and responsibilities and
requirements of the Listing Rules.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code Provision on
directors’ training. The Company has received from each of the Directors his

confirmation on taking continuous professional training.
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Attending in-house
training session

or seminars Reading materials
2 iR B3 H

Name of Directors BEEHR REIMAE B E AR
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin IR K& v Vv
Mr. Chen Wei Chun PRIZ L E v v
Non-Executive Director EHITES
Mr. Kuo Jen Hao ATESE Vv
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUKHITES
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Chairman) Blsh e E(F ) Vv \
Mr. Li Chak Hung TEESLE V v
Mr. Wu Chia Ming RERAXE v Vv
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are separate to
reinforce independence, accountability and responsibility. Mr. Lau Yau Cheung,
the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for the formulation of development
strategies, investment decision making, overall project planning at the Group
level, leading the Board and ensuring that the board functions properly and
effectively, whilst Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, the chief executive officer of several
subsidiaries of the Company which are mainly engaged in manufacturing
and trading of the media entertainment platform related products, other
multimedia products, integration of signal and traffic communication and
satellite TV equipment and antenna (“Manufacturing and Trading of
Electronic Products Business Division”) is responsible for the management
of the daily operation and general administration of the Manufacturing and

Trading of Electronic Products Business Division.

Ms. Chen Mei Huei, the chief executive officer of the Satellite Broadcasting
Services Business Division, is responsible for the development of the Satellite
Broadcasting Services Business Division and the overall management of the
Group including all overseas offices.

Board Committees
The Board has established three committees with specific written terms of
reference to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 17 March 2005 with written terms
of reference, which are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
of the Company respectively. All the members of the Audit Committee are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Chak Hung, Mr. Lau
Yau Cheung and Mr. Wu Chia Ming. Mr. Li Chak Hung, who has appropriate
professional accounting qualifications as required under the Listing Rules, was
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the members of

the Audit Committee is a former partner of the auditors of the Company.
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The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
(i) being primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor; (i) reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards; (iii) developing and implementing a policy on engaging
an external auditor to supply non-audit services; (iv) monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements and the annual report and accounts,
half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, before
submission of the financial statements and reports to the Board, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; (v) reviewing the
Company's financial control, risk management and internal control systems;
and (vi) discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to have
effective systems. The Audit Committee may seek any necessary information
from employees within its terms of reference and obtain independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if

it considers necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee held 5
meetings to review annual audit planning, annual results, interim audit
planning, interim results and the internal control review in respect of the
Listing Rules compliance conducted by an external consultant.

Further, on 26 March 2018, in order to speed up the annual auditing by
facilitating the audit processes and arrangements of the Group to be more
efficient, the Audit Committee made a recommendation to the Board of a
change of auditors of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company for the
year of 2018. The Board considered the same on the same date and concluded

1 June 2018 to put aside on the basis of not arriving at an agreement with
the proposed external auditors in terms of engagement and total amount of
audit fees at the relevant time.

The attendance record of individual Directors at the audit committee meetings
is set out on page 32 of the annual report.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 17 March 2005 with written
terms of reference, which are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and of the Company respectively. All the members of the Nomination
Committee are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Yau
Cheung (chairman), Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr. Wu Chia Ming.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include, among other
things, (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (iii) assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and (iv) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. The
Nomination Committee may seek any necessary information from employees
within its terms of reference and obtain independent professional advice, at
the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no new Director was appointed.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting to (i) review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
(i) assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors. The
attendance of individual Directors at the Nomination Committee meeting is
set out on page 32 of the annual report.

As adopted by the Board on 1 June 2018, the board diversity policy aims to
set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in order to enhance
the quality of its performance. Selection of candidates on the Board is based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The Nomination Committee will assess the merit and contribution
that any Director proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated to be
appointed as Director against the objective and appropriate criteria, having

due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 17 March 2005 with written
terms of reference, which are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and of the Company respectively. All the members of the Remuneration
Committee are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wu Chia
Ming (chairman), Mr. Lau Yau Cheung and Mr. Li Chak Hung.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among other
things, (i) making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management of
the Group; (ii) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives; and
(i) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
may seek any necessary information from senior management within its terms
of reference and obtain independent professional advice, at the Company’s
expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee held
2 meetings to review the existing remuneration packages of Directors and the
key terms and conditions of the service agreement and letter of appointment.
The attendance of individual Directors at the Remuneration Committee
meetings is set out on page 32 of the annual report.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration band
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¥ BN & B A
HK$0-HK$ 1,000,000 02 1,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T 2
HK$2,000,001-HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7 7T £ 3,000,000 % JT 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES
The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance
functions set out below:

(1)  developing and reviewing the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

(2)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of ethic and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

(5) reviewing the Company's compliance with the Code Provisions and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

On 1 June 2018, the Board has approved and adopted the following new or
updated policies:

(i) Board diversity policy;

(i) Corporate governance charter;

(i) Shareholders’ communication policy;
(iv)  Shareholders’ rights; and

(v)  Procedures for Shareholders to propose Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Lee Suet Lai has confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board endeavours to present to Shareholders a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects. Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently, and judgements and estimates made by the management
for financial reporting purpose are prudent and reasonable.

The adoption of relevant new and revised HKFRSs that became effective during
the year has no significant impact on the Group'’s results of operation and
financial position as disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The external auditors perform independent audit of the annual consolidated
financial statements prepared by the management. BDO Limited ("BDO") has
been engaged as the Company’s external auditor.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fees charged to the financial
statements of the Group in respect of BDO's statutory audit and other services
amounted to approximately HKS$1,750,000 and HK$274,000 respectively. The
fees of recurring audit services of subsidiaries performed by other auditors and

the fees of provision of other services were approximately HK$2,697,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control and risk management which is designed and
operated to provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s business
objectives in the following areas are achieved:

Effectiveness and efficiency of operations, including the achievement of
performance and operating targets and the safeguarding of assets by
the management;

Reliability of financial and operating information provided by the
management, including management accounts and statutory financial

reports; and

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations by each business unit.
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The Company has put and continues to place considerable emphasis on

maintaining and enhancing the effectiveness of its system of internal control.

Under the Company’s internal control framework, risk management and

internal control are primarily the collective responsibility of every manager and

employee. For consistent compliance by every person in the Company, the

following key control policies and measures are implemented in the everyday

activities, which are summarized below:

1.

40

Overall control environment, including code of ethics governing staff
conduct within the Group, and whistle blowing policy;

Management of financial and non-financial risks, including at the
company level the risk management functions of the Board; at the
business unit level management’s ongoing monitoring of operational

and other risks;

Major controls systems and processes, including budgetary and cost
controls, financial reporting systems and processes for timely and quality
management reporting, and corporate policies and procedures for
approvals, reviews and segregation of duties in everyday activities;

In relation to ongoing compliance monitoring and internal control
reviews, the company secretary undertakes to monitor overall of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The internal audit manager directly
reports to the Audit Committee and is engaged to conduct independent
reviews on the internal control and assist in risk management; and

The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company's internal controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management. It has also considered the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
accounting and financial reporting functions.
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In conducting these reviews, the following reports and activities are
considered:

self-assessments made by management of various business units and
subsidiaries of their material controls and risk management activities
undertaken with reference to the The Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQ”") enterprise risk
management framework. The documentation supporting the self
-assessments is subjected to review by internal audit; and

self-assessments made by business units and Group finance of the
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and
financial reporting functions. The main conclusions are that:

the resources in the accounting and finance functions are
adequate; and

the qualifications and experience of the staff of the accounting
and finance functions are satisfactory overall.

During the year, the Company engaged an internal control review advisor to
perform a special review on the Group's key internal control procedures to
assist the Board and management of the Group to evaluate the effectiveness
of the internal controls system as set up and maintained by the management
of the Group in accordance with Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The internal
control review advisor reported major findings and areas for improvement to
the Board with no major risks that might have significant impact to the Group's
operations identified. All the recommendations from the internal control
review advisor are properly following up by the Group to ensure that they will
be implemented within a reasonable period of time.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

An internal control and risk management system, no matter how well designed
and operated, is to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives. The design of a control system must
reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls
must be considered relative to their costs. Further, because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. In addition,
the design of any system of controls is based in part on certain assumptions
about the likelihood of future events.
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Inside Information Policy

An inside information policy is in place which contains guidelines to the
Directors and officers of the Group to ensure that inside information of the
Group can be promptly identified, assessed and disseminated to the public
in consistent and timely manner in accordance with the requirements under
the Listing Rules. The Company must disclose inside information to the public
as soon as reasonably practicable, unless the “safe harbours” provisions under
the SFO apply. The Board shall take reasonable precautions in preserving the
confidentiality of inside information and the relevant announcement before
publication.

The Board and management will continue to look into opportunities for further
enhancing the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group in the
years ahead.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group regards internal audit as an important part of the Board and Audit
Committee’s oversight function. The principal objective of internal audit, which
is set out in an internal audit charter, is to provide the Board and management
with useful information and recommendations on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.

AUTHORITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Under the internal audit charter endorsed by the Audit Committee, the internal
audit function is authorized by the Board to have access to all records, people
and physical properties relevant to the performance of internal audit. The
internal audit manager has unrestricted access to the chairman of the Audit
Committee and reports directly to the Audit Committee for direction and
accountability. This reporting relationship enables internal audit manager to
provide an objective assurance to the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group.
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DUTIES

The duties of the internal audit manager are described in the internal
audit charter. It mainly requires that (a) internal audits are conducted with
independence, objectivity and due professional care in compliance with the
relevant standards, guidelines, and the code of ethics; (b) systems established
are evaluated to ensure compliance with those policies, plans, procedures, law
and regulations which could have a significant impact on The Group; (c) the
approved internal audit plan is implemented, including any other special tasks
or projects requested by the Audit Committee; and (d) the Audit Committee is
updated with key audit initiatives and progress of completion of the approved
internal audit plan, including any change.

All above described duties may be adjusted depending on the resources
available for internal audit function. The management of the Group has the
responsibility to keep reviewing the resources’ availability for internal audit
function.

INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES AND MAJOR WORK
DONE IN 2018

The allocation of resources remained a challenging task for the internal audit
manager during the financial year 2018. Recently, the internal audit manager
is focusing on improving the internal control and will assist in strengthening
the risk management of the Group if resources are adequate. Based on the
availability of resources, the internal audit manager decided to focus on
upgrading the existing internal control to risk-based for operating cycles of the
main operating business units in Pro Brand Technology, Inc. and such annual
internal audit plan had been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee
in the financial year 2018. The Group and the Audit Committee will keep
reviewing the resources’ availability for the implementation of internal control
function and risk management and will regulate the activities for both.

The internal control for operating cycles of the main operating business units
in Pro Brand Technology, Inc. was evaluated with risks identified, upgraded
and improved progressively in the financial year 2018 and planned to be
completed in the financial year 2019. The upgrade will be kept rotating and
extending to others business units of the Group gradually in the coming years.
The internal audit manager had prepared and submitted the annual internal
audit plan for the financial year 2019 to the Audit Committee for approval.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to a variety of risks when conducting its business
operations globally. The Board assists the Group in anticipating its risk
exposure, putting controls in place to counter threats, and pursuing its set
objectives. After the Board has identified the top risks of the Group, the
Directors will assess how much risk the Board is faced with through the Group's
operation and governance processes.

Based on the risk profile of each business unit, and taking into account the
management control and corporate oversight at Group level, the Audit
Committee and internal audit manager would map out a risk-based internal

audit plan each year. The Company has separated its risks into two levels:

(1) Enterprise risk level which is mainly externally driven and will be
mitigated by solution comes from management discussion; and

(2)  Operating risk level which is mainly internally driven and will be
mitigated by building up risk control matrixes for tests of controls and
remediation of deficiencies identified.

The following are the current top and emerging risks of the Group.

Commercial Risk

Commercial risk refers to potential losses arising from inadequate gross
margins and/or non-performance of trading partners or counterparties in the
regions that the Group is operating. It is important to ensure that our trading
partners or counterparties are reliable, financially healthy and willing to comply
with sound commercial practice.
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Currently, the key commercial risks facing by the Group are international
economic conflicts. In 2018, the PRC and the US are engaged in a trade war
that each country continues to dispute tariffs placed on goods traded between
them. As some of the major customers of the Group are located in the US
and the major production facilities of the Group are located in the PRC, the
China-United States trade war has some impact on the Group's business and
operations. In order to mitigate the impact from the China-United States trade
war and to avoid the tariffs imposed by the US on products originating from
the PRC, the Group has managed these commercial risks by:

(@)  strengthening its supply chain management, such as encouraging our
suppliers to establish new production facilities in Vietnam to cope with
the production orders of parts and accessories of our products;

(b)  relocating certain manufacturing workflows to India by establishing local
production facilities to diversify the production facilities of the Group;
and

() working closely with the customers in the US to streamline the process

of products delivery and customs clearance.

Financial Risk

Currency risk

For bank borrowings, the functional currency of each operating entity is
generally matched with its liabilities. As such, management does not expect
any significant foreign currency risk associated with the Group's borrowings.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages and maintains a level of operating cash flows deemed to
be adequate by the management to finance the Group’s daily operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Compliance Risk

The Group has adopted internal procedures to monitor the Group’s compliance
risk to ensure that the Group is complied with the laws and regulations where
applicable. Besides, the Group engages an internal control review advisor to
review the Group's corporate governance and legal advisers to update the
Group about the latest development in the regulatory environment.

BAl  AEEHENEIZRXRARABEREES
R-N_ZE-N\F THEXBRHAEZE &
5 I B PR 0 55 7 R R A O D B S 5 TN BT
HRASENETIERPURNEEEARNEEN
TRAERBUNTE HPXEH5BHAKE

MEBREEELE TRE RTRTXESHE
MEEREREEERE B ERBKEER -

AEEBBATTAETEZEAXRAR

@ faftrEEE flusBHERESR

BYHMOEERE WENRMERONT
R BE M EERE

b) BEEHNERVLAERE S5 THRET
ERERBEHE EAKENEERE
Zrafe: &

© HEXBEEFPEBUAE BLLEMIMRB
BAIE ©

Bt %5 L B

EEREE

RIRITEEMS  SLEERNINEEL —RE
HEBEMECE At EREREHATSEEEM
BASEEEREBANERIINERAR -

B E % R
AEESEEMGEEEERREHKFNEE
Beng MNERAKEAFELERNESRA
BRERERDNTE -

BRER
AEBCRANBEFREZAEENSRER
femiERANE BB TERRERERIER - I
AEEEREFANEEERNENARENERE
B UREBBEEIZERAASEREHEEERR
RNERBBENRNER -

2018 Annual Report / Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 45
2018 F i/ BF T BHEIZERBR AR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

A A S/ £ o
TTEERMRE (£

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors believe that environmental protection and social responsibilities
represent an essential part of the Group’s operations and the sustainable
development of the Group and the community. In addition to the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Company as disclosed in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders” and “Business Overview and
Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Company was also encountered
the risks in relation to the ESG-related risks. The Group has implemented an
environmental policy to safeguard “the compliance with the regulations,
consumption reduction, uplifting efficiency, pollution prevention and
continuing improvement”. In 2018, the Company minimised undesirable
resources consumption in the process of business operation, dedicating
to reduce pollutants and establish an environmental-friendly working
environment. The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance that might lead to
warnings from regulators. Accordingly, the Group has strictly complied with
the national law and regulations, including but not limited to, related to
environmental protection, comprising the Environmental Protection Law of
the PRC and the Law of the PRC on the Promotion of Clean Production, etc.
The Company is vigilant in identifying and managing risk and ensuring the
compliance with applicable laws and regulations in all the areas in which the
Company do business. The Company has also engaged with a consultant to
ensure the compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in various
jurisdictions thereby there was no significant adverse impact that had affected
the operation and financial performance of the Company.

The major subsidiaries of the Group have implemented relevant environmental
protection measures on energy saving and emission reduction, so as to
minimise the emission of pollutants during the production process. The
Group realizes that the environmental impacts resulted from the production
in satellite television equipment, antennas and other electronic products
include energy consumption, waste gas emission and generation of hazardous
waste. The manufacturing plants in the PRC have thus implemented the
“Environmental Management System”, stating clearly the responsibilities
of the Environmental Protection Officer and other relevant employees. The
Environmental Management Office is responsible for the unification of the
management, including the use of resources and “three wastes” emissions.
The Environmental Management System of the Company has obtained GB/T
24001-2016/1SO 14001:2015 Environmental Management System Certification,
ensuring an effective and better standard of environmental systems could be
achieved.
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The Group values its relationship with its stakeholders, comprising shareholders,
customers, suppliers, regulators and employees. Among others, employees
are regarded as the most important and precious assets of the Group. In 2018,
the Company had completed restructuring in its manufacturing plants in
Zhongshan, 686 employees were laid-off and fully compensated in accordance
with the PRC Labour Law and relevant regulatory requirements. The Company
continued providing professional trainings to existing and new staff aiming to
enhance and broaden their skill, knowledge and competency. On the other
hand, to avoid reoccurrence of environmental and safety accidents as well
as to strengthen the foundation work of safe production in the plants in the
PRC, the Company has formulated the “Environmental and Safety Emergency
Plan” to establish a rescue and emergency mechanism, so as to promote the
responsibility for safe production, promote comprehensive and in-depth
management of the entire business chain, ensure the safety of the workplace
for employees as well as the corporate property, and in the meantime reduce
the impact from hazards of accidents to the surroundings. All in all, it would
result in low or no casualty in the production and manufacturing process
as well as to ensure a safe and secure workplace could be provided to the

employees.

The Group maintains a close relationship with its suppliers, inviting them
to relocate their individual production facilities as tenants to the plants in
Zhongshan in the PRC. It allows the Company to share its skill, expertise and
knowledge with the suppliers during the production. This would not only
strengthen its supply chain management, but also reduce the air pollutants
emitted from vehicles during transportation.

Maintaining a long term relationship with customers is another key objective
of the Group. In 2018, the Group achieved a revenue from one of the major
customers, who has established over decades of relationship, contributing over
10% of the total sales of the Group amounting to HK$165,301,000. At the same
time, the Company was exploring more business opportunities in other areas
aiming to mitigate the risk as well as to expand its customer base.

Further discussions of the aforesaid areas are covered by a separate
"Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2018" which will be published
within three months after the publication of this report.

AEBERHEFHENEAER BERE TP
HER EEHERER ERZHHOHET  E
BHAREEGEREEZE UARMHNEEEE R
“E-N\FE ARFEURFILNEEREES TK
B BesowEE TR WERKEFBLEE
RIEEEEERESE2EME RARAREERR
BERFEIREEXEI BERARERES
HHE MBREH - S—FTHEH BWLERRER
ZEEWEREE URRLECPFBRBELEEE
WERIE AAREHECRR T“2E2TE
R) BUETHREMEZOHES #8924
ERT REEBXGELTNE2EREER &
REIBLZENIERRNECEVERS AR
WO BIINEWEAERRTNEE B2 Eﬁ—r
BAEREERRETFELREKETCHIEEZZET
WiERARERHEZ S  BLKHIESH-

AEBEARRARETHEE AFRELE S
MEEREEZH L AR ﬁzTFﬁEA#i‘M’\JEﬁ}% °
HAMARBREEEBRETEHERDFHEKE -
EREMFB -ETEGMREEEERE LR
R EHM B TERMELNER -

HEFPHRBRERBERAAEES —HEEXZEBERZR-

AZTE-—NF AEBREEF —BEAEEE
BT FRENEZEE AN EE65301,00087T -
EAREEBESEERI0% R KAARERE
ENRAEZEK  RETFERRAREPE -

ATl BB A E — I mE RN IB A (2018 5
ﬁ@&%ﬁﬁ%kﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%%
=& 8 )z -

2018 Annual Report / Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 47
2018 F i/ BF T BHEIZERBR AR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

A A S/ £ o
TTEERMRE (£

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 which were
prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board aims to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’s position and prospects in annual reports, interim
reports and other financial disclosures required by the Listing Rules.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the independent
auditor's report on pages 76 to 84 of this annual report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a Shareholders’ communication policy on 1 June
2018 and the Board shall review on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
The Company communicates with the Shareholders mainly in the following
ways: (i) the holding of annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special general
meeting (“SGM”), if any, which may be convened for specific purposes which
provide opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate directly with the
Board; (ii) the publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports
and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules; and (iii) the availability of

latest information of the Group on the Company’s website.

General Meetings with Shareholders

Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s website and
communicate with the Company by mail, telephone, fax and email, details of
which are made available on the Company’s website.

Separate resolutions were proposed at the general meetings for such
substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring Directors. The Company’s
notice to Shareholders for the 2018 AGM was sent to the Shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the meeting and notices of all other general
meetings were sent to the Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before

the meetings.
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The chairman of the Board and the chairman/members of the board
committees and the external auditors were available at the 2018 AGM to
answer questions from the Shareholders. With the assistance of the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited (“Branch Share Registrar”), the representative of the Branch
Share Registrar had explained the procedures for conducting a poll during the
2018 AGM. The poll results are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and of the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

An AGM was held on 12 June 2018 and the voting was conducted by way of
poll.

Information Disclosure on Corporate Website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the
Group to all interested parties as widely and as timely as possible. The
Company maintains a corporate website at http://www.sandmartin.com.hk
where important information about the Company’s activities and corporate
matters such as annual reports and interim reports to the Shareholders
and announcements is available for review by the Shareholders and other
stakeholders.

When announcements are made through the Stock Exchange, the same
information will be made available on the website of the Company.

During the year, the Company issued various announcements in respect of
financial and inside information, which can be reviewed on the website of the
Company.

Investor Relations

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to those with
a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. In addition, questions
received from the general public and individual Shareholders are answered
promptly. In all cases, great care is taken to ensure that no inside information
is disclosed selectively. When announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange, the same information will be made available on the website of the
Company.

BEESTRENEEZE TR KNE RIMNBZE
Eﬂifﬂﬂer*?*)\iﬂxﬁﬂfﬁﬁ I B 25 A%
RRM -EARAREBZROBEELRIESE
BHRRELE Eﬁﬁﬁﬁj(fﬂﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬂﬁJﬁD
MBS T BROBFELENKRERCEER =T
—/\EﬁxﬁﬂikAﬁsﬁFﬁLfﬂ EMREF-RE
REEETRERREAD B HNB I RA
Qﬂmﬁ°

fEERBEFASEER_ZE—N\FANAT+-_HETT
KA E T ELT -

ARRUEZ2EREE
RKARB O MMESFEESARAEEEHN
CATEZRERHBEEFELAEERZ
BEEZEEH - ARARBERAABIY BB
http//www.sandmartincomhk » I & %Il 5 B & X &
EBRAREB(NBBRRZFREF RS X
REIZCEZER HEREREMFHESH -

BRBIFMBEMZAER  ZRAZEERBEEZEHN
KRB B AEER -

RER ARRRMBEABEETIESZNHA
BRARAEARARAEEZE

DH

REERR
ARARIABAFEREAREN AT RIREERR

AREERERBOEE - WIN KRB TER
BEE-RARRBEHIBRZER -EMBRBR
T ARBYERREREE  BRISEENK
I BRI AR R o AR BESE B PN
NER - ZEEHTSEHNARARIEAHZIE -

2018 Annual Report / Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 49
2018 F i/ BF T BHEIZERBR AR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

A AL s \A\:l:
IExXE #&m F

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders as required to
be disclosed pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code:

Convening an SGM and putting forward proposals at such meetings.
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the Bye-Laws,
Shareholder(s) as at the date of deposit of the requisition holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a
written requisition requiring an SGM to be called by the Board. The written
requisition (i) must state the purposes of the meeting, and (i) must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company's registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11 Bermuda (the “Registered
Office”) or head office in Hong Kong at Units 04-05, 16/F., Nam Wo Hong
Building, 148 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong for attention of the
Board or the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”),
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified with the Branch Share
Registrar and upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an SGM by serving
sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been
verified as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, an SGM will not be convened as requested.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of a valid
requisition proceed duly to convene an SGM, the requisitions or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
themselves convene an SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of 3 months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. In
addition, such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be
convened by the Board.

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number of
Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at
the meeting to which the requisition relates, or not less than 100 Shareholders,
can at the expense of the requisitionists request the Company in writing to
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(a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next AGM notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to In any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all the
requisitionists must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company for
the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses and not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less
than one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director
The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director are available for viewing on the Company's website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholding to the
Branch Share Registrar. Other enquiries from Shareholders may be put forward
to the Board through the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to
the Board for handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as

follows:

The Company Secretary

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited
Units 04-05 16/F Nam Wo Hong Building
148 Wing Lok Street

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

Email: ir@sandmartin.com.hk
Tel No: +852 2587 7798
Fax No: +852 2587 7728

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no change in the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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Mr. Lau Yau Cheung, aged 58

Independent Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Board, chairman of
Nomination Committee

Member of each of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

is an independent non-executive Director since 7 August 2017, and was
appointed as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 18 August 2017.
He is currently the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company
and a member of each of the audit committee of the Company and the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor’s degree
in commerce from the University of Toronto in Canada. He has over 24 years
of experience in business strategies and corporate finance and 6 years of
experience in securities trading business. Mr. Lau has served in various senior
management positions with both private and public companies in Hong Kong
and overseas. From 1999 to present, he serves as the managing director of
BH Capitalink Development Limited. Mr. Lau is currently an independent non-
executive director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 102).

Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, aged 58

Executive Director, Authorised Representative

is the founder of the Group, which was founded in November 1989. He was
the Chairman of the Board until 18 August 2017. Mr. Hung acts as an executive
Director and authorised representative of the Company. He is currently the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and the chief executive officer
of several subsidiaries of the Company which mainly are engaged in the
Manufacturing and Trading of Electronic Products Business Division.

Mr. Hung has over 29 years of management experience in the electronics
manufacturing industry. He graduated from the National Chengchi University
in Taiwan, with a bachelor's degree in business administration. Mr. Hung also
completed the executives programme from the Graduate School of Business
Administration, National Chengchi University.

He is the husband of Ms. Chen Mei Huei, the director of several subsidiaries
of the Company and the chief executive officer of the Satellite Broadcasting

Services Business Division.
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Mr. Chen Wei Chun, aged 42

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer

joined the Group in May 2015 and was appointed as an executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 28 August 2015 and 30 November
2017 respectively. He is also the director and the chief financial officer of Pro
Brand Technology, Inc., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Chen graduated from National Chengchi University and Shih Chien University
with a master degree in finance and a master degree in business administration
respectively. He is well experienced in accounting and finance industries. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Chen was the head of finance department of TTY
Biopharm Company Limited and head of finance department of K.H.S. Musical
Instrument Company Limited.

Mr. Kuo Jen Hao, aged 42
Non-Executive Director

was appointed as a non-executive Director on 18 August 2017. He graduated
with a bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Aletheia University
in Taiwan and holds a master degree of business administration from Pace
University in 2003 in the United States. Mr. Kuo is a certified public accountant
of the New Jersey State Board of Accountancy.

He has several years of work experience in investment advisory, financial
advisory and corporate finance at PricewaterhouseCoopers, Bank of America
Merrill Lynch and Private Equity Management Group and held various key
roles at several private and listed companies engaging in (i) the administrative
and corporate business; (ii) corporate finance; and (iii) general management
in real estate development business, shipping business, retailing business
and logistics business. Mr. Kuo has a wealth of experience in business strategy
development and innovation management.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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He is the chairman and the general manager of First Steamship Company
Limited (“First Steamship”) (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation (“TWSE") (TWSE Stock Code: 2601) and is a substantial shareholder
of the Company and through its subsidiaries collectively holds 29% of the
issued share capital of the Company). Mr. Kuo is also a director and the
chairman of Grand Ocean Retail Group Limited (a company listed on the TWSE
(TWSE Stock Code: 5907) and is a subsidiary of First Steamship) and Taiwan
Environment Scientific Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Taipei Exchange)
(Taipei Exchange Stock Code: 8476), and a non-executive director and the
chairman of the board of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 102).
He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the First Steamship including but
not limited to Mariner Finance Limited, Morton Securities Limited and First
Steamship S.A. Mr. Kuo was a director of IRC Properties, Inc. (@ company listed
on the Philippine Stock Exchange) from July 2017 to May 2018.

Mr. Li Chak Hung, aged 54
Independent Non-Executive Director, chairman of Audit Committee
Member of each of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee

is an independent non-executive Director since 20 September 2016. He is
currently the chairman of the audit committee of the Company and a member
of each of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Li graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Business Administration. He is a practicing
Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Li
has over 25 years' experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and financial
management. He is currently an independent non-executive director of
DreamEast Group Limited (Stock Code: 593), AsiaSec Properties Limited (Stock
Code: 271) and Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 102), all of which
are companies whose shares are listed on main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Wu Chia Ming, aged 50
Independent Non-Executive Director, chairman of Remuneration Committee

Member of each of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee

is an independent non-executive Director since 1 December 2014. He is
currently the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and
a member of each of the audit committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Wu has a master's degree in business administration
from the Institute of International Business, National Chen-kung University
and a bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering from Chung Yuan Christian
University in Taiwan. He has nearly 24 years of experience in financial analysis
and fund management. Currently, Mr. Wu is the chairman of Fortune-Future
Investment Co., Ltd. Prior to that, he was a fund manager of KGI Securities
Investment Trust Co., Ltd.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chen Mei Huei, aged 56

Director of several subsidiaries of the Company and Chief Executive Officer of
Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division

is a co-founder of the Group since 1989. She is currently a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company and the chief executive officer of Satellite
Broadcasting Services Business Division. Ms. Chen is responsible for the
development of the Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division and the
overall management of the Group including all overseas offices. She has been
actively engaged in the sales and marketing development of the Group in
Taiwan and the international markets for more than 29 years and has particular
focus on new customers and new market development in recent years. Ms.
Chen graduated from Tamkang University in Taiwan with a dual bachelor
degree in Spanish Literature and International Trade. She is the wife of Mr.
Hung Tsung Chin, an executive director and authorised representative of the
Company. Mr. Hung is also the chief executive officer of several subsidiaries of
the Company which mainly are engaged in the Manufacturing and Trading of
Electronic Products Business Division.
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Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer, aged 59
Director of several subsidiaries of the Company, Vice President of the Group, Chief

Technology Officer of the Group

joined the Group in January 2008 and is currently a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company, and the vice president and chief technology
officer of the Group. He is responsible for the development of the Satellite
Broadcasting Services Business Division and the global marketing strategy
of the Group. Mr. Fischer has more than 30 years of experience in hardware
and software development for consumer electronic products in Europe and
has been involved in Digital TV technologies since the beginning of Digital
Video Broadcasting (“DVB") Project in 1994. He graduated as diploma degree
engineer for automation technology and cybernetics from the Technical

University Leizig in Germany.

Mr. Hsiao Yu Jung, aged 53
Deputy General Manager of the Group’s DVB division

joined the Group in July 2002 and is currently the deputy general manager of
the Group’s DVB division. He is responsible for procurement, manufacturing
and development of the Group's DVB products. Mr. Hsiao obtained a diploma
in mechanical design engineering from the National Formosa University in

Taiwan.

Mr. Su Jow Shi, aged 55
General Manager of the Group’s digital TV division

joined the Group in September 1995 and is currently the general manager of
the Group’s digital TV division. He is responsible for manufacturing operations.
Mr. Su graduated from the San Diego State University where he earned a
Master of Public Administration degree.
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Ms. Su Wan Ling (also named Ms. aka Julia Swen), aged 54

Director of Pro Brand Technology, Inc.

has been working in our Group since 2007 and is currently a director of Pro
Brand Technology, Inc. She is responsible for promoting the cable products
and digital television products in the market of the United States. Ms. Su
graduated from the University of California, with a bachelor's degree in
Biochemistry; a master’s degree in Environmental Science and a master’s
degree of Business Administration. She has over 24 years of experience in
research of biotechnology field and business management.

Mr. Sven Willig, aged 46
General Manager of Intelligent Digital Services GmbH

has joined the Group since 2005 and is currently the general manager of
Intelligent Digital Services GmbH. He is responsible for hard- and software
development and sales of DVB Products. Mr. Sven has over 19 years of
management experience in the development and quality control of digital
television technologies.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWmS

The Board has the pleasure of presenting the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and operating results for the year ended 31
December 2018 by principal activities is set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 85 to 86 of the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set
out as below:

Section(s) in the annual report

EEeMAREAKSEBE_FT-N\F+ A
ST BLEFENFREBERGAVBRE

TEXRH
ARRA—MREAZRAR  HEBHE AR
EEEHRRAREE AN B BRI e

AEBBE_T-N\F+_-_A=t—"BLFEE
ERPNPERELEXREDMEANAREZRS B
BT ROMIGET

E$
AEEBE_ZTE—\FEF+_A=+—HLEEHN
EBEHNAFRFEGSEEFANGAER M
Hb2mlzER -

£ 30)
AEEBE-T—\Ft-A=t+-HLFEN
EBEERFIMT -

Page no. of the
annual report

RERZEH FEHZEE
a. Fair review of the Company’s business Business Overview and Management Discussion and Analysis 8to 16
RRABRBHEERE XBEHMEREEENRES N FE8EEE16H
b. Description of the principal risks and Chairman'’s Letter to Shareholders 4t07
uncertainties the Company is facing FREBIBRRRS FABEFETH
WA ANR EEHEAOFERER & Business Overview and Management Discussion and Analysis 81016

TeREREE EBHMEREEEN wED FE8HEF16H
C. Particulars of important events affecting Business Overview and Management Discussion and Analysis 8to 16

the Company that have occurred since EXBHMELRERENRESN F8EHEF168H

the year ended 31 December 2018 Financial Review 1710 26

BEE-Z-/\F+-A=+t—H0 WHKLEE
TFEREEANFEARANESR
FEAB
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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Page no. of the

Section(s) in the annual report annual report
REREEH TEHRZER
d. Indication of likely future development Business Overview and Management Discussion and Analysis 8to 16
of the Company’s business X¥EBMEREEENRESN FEEEFEI6H
RRFEBARKRAGLERNTR
e. Analysis using financial key Business Overview and Management Discussion and Analysis 8to 16
performance indicators EBHMENEERE REST FSHEFI6H
FERMBEERRIBENST Financial Review 1710 26
B % @ R E1I7EEF26H
Financial Summary 264
BHBmE 264 H
f. Discussion on the Company’s Corporate Governance Report 27 t0 51
environmental policies and BEERME FUBEESH
performance Further information about the Company’s environmental Not applicable

BAARNRRIRERERKROH policies and performance will be described in the
"Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2018"
(a standalone report)
BEBRARAREBRRRRBENE - FERE A3 A
RIZTE-N\FRE HERER/HRSE]
(—mBLRE)PEE

g.  Anaccount of the Company’s key Business Overview and Management Discussion and Analysis 8to 16
relationships with its employees, XM EREEEN WESNT FSHEFI16H
customers and suppliers and others Report of the Directors 581075
that have a significant impact on the EEeRE FS8EEETSH

Company and on which the Company’s
success depend

AAGEHES BFPREEBUR
HAEARBEEAZERKRR AN

B T BT 4 R8 89 B A A £ B9 B R AU

h. Discussion on the Company’'s compliance  Corporate Governance Report 271051
with the relevant laws and regulations that {2 & JA 3R & F2AEFES B
have a significant impact on the Company  Report of the Directors 58t075
RARBFTHARARREEATEN BEEFGRSE ES8HEETSH

HH R E AR K AR E B 1B 0L AT #R

2018 Annual Report / Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 59
2018 F i/ BF T BHEIZERBR AR



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEERE#

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (‘Dividend Policy”), pursuant to
which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the declaration and
distribution of dividends does not affect the future growth of the Group.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and may adopt
changes as appropriate at the relevant time to ensure the effectiveness of the
Dividend Policy.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity
linked agreements were entered into during or subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EECRE@#

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2018 was the Company, any of
its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any body corporate.

Distributable Reserves
As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not have the distributable reserve
(2017: Nil).

Details of the movements in reserves during the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in page 89 to the consolidated financial statements of the

Group.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium

accounts.

Donations
The Group did not make any donation for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Bye-Laws provide that every Director is entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses and damages which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.

The permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended 31
December 2018 for the benefit of the Directors.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 264 of the annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate sales attributable to
the Group's five largest customers amounted to approximately 45.0% of the
Group's total sales and the sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
were approximately 12.7% of the Group's total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group's five largest supplier amounted to approximately 25.9% of the
total purchases and the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier
were approximately 16.3% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders (who to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued shares of the
Company) had any interests in the five largest customers and suppliers of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EECRE@#

Management Contracts

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2018.

Litigation
The details of the Group’s litigations proceedings are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of
this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin
Mr. Chen Wei Chun (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Kuo Jen Hao

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Chairman)

Mr. Li Chak Hung

Mr. Wu Chia Ming

In accordance with Bye-Laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Li Chak Hung
(“Mr. Li") and Mr. Wu Chia Ming (“Mr. Wu") shall retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM has entered into a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Changes to Information in Respect of Directors

In accordance with rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes to
information required to be disclosed by the Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a)
to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) since the Company’s interim report 2018 and up
to the date of the annual report are set out below:

1. The director fee of Mr. Hung Tsung Chin increased to HK$10,000 per
month with effect from 1 September 2018.

2. The director fee of Mr. Chen Wei Chun increased to HK$10,000 per
month with effect from 1 September 2018.

3. The director fee of Mr. Kuo Jen Hao (“Mr. Kuo”) increased to HKS$10,000
per month with effect from 1 September 2018.

4. Mr. Kuo was appointed as a chairman of Taiwan Environment Scientific
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Taipei Exchange) (Taipei Exchange
Stock Code: 8476) with effect from 29 May 2018.

5. Mr. Kuo ceased to be a director of IRC Properties, Inc. (a company listed
on the Philippine Stock Exchange) with effect from May 2018.

6.  The director fee of Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (“Mr. Lau") increased to
HK$15,000 per month with effect from 1 September 2018.

7. Mr. Lau was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 102) with effect from 31
October 2018.

8. The director fee of Mr. Li increased to HK$10,000 per month with effect
from 1 September 2018.

0. Mr. Li was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 102) with effect from 31
October 2018.

10.  The director fee of Mr. Wu increased to HK$10,000 per month with effect
from 1 September 2018.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management, together
with those of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and Corporate Governance Report on page 37
respectively.

The emolument payable to the Directors (including salary and other benefits)
are recommended by the Remuneration Committee of the Company for the
Board's approval, having regard to the Group's operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of
Significance

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a Director or his
or her connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2018.

Directors’ and Their Associates’ Interests in Competing Business
As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and their associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) was considered to be interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the year
ended 31 December 2018 is disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

The related party transactions did not constitute connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 17 March 2005, the share option scheme of the Company (‘Share Option

Scheme") was approved and adopted by the then Shareholders. A summary of

the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme is set out as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

66

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognize the
contributions of the participants.

Eligible Participants

The participants of the Share Option Scheme are directors or employees,
any business consultants, business partners, suppliers, customers, agents
financial or legal advisers, debtors or creditors who will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Grant of Options

The Board shall be entitled at any time, within 10 years after the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme, to make an offer of the grant of
an option to any participant.

Payment on Acceptance of Option Offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the participant to the Company on acceptance of
the option offer as consideration for the grant within 30 days from the
date upon which the option offer is made.

Subscription Price of Shares
The subscription price of an option to subscribe for shares granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme shall be the highest of:

the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date on which an option offer is
made to a participant, which must be a business day;

the average of the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which an option offer is made;
and

the nominal value of a share.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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(vi)

(vii)

Total Number of Shares Available for Issue

The Company had 2,910,000 shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme, representing 0.09% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report.

Maximum Entitlement of Shares of each Participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue. Where shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to a participant who is a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of his or her associate in the
12-month period up to and including the date of grant, (1) representing
in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of shares in issue; and
(2) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares
at the date of each grant, in excess of HKS5 million, the proposed grant
of option must be approved by the Shareholders by poll in general
meeting.

(viii) Time of Exercise of Option

The exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option. The Board has the authority to determine the minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

WS4

During the year, details of movements in the share options under the Share

RER REBEBEREFE BT BRENESF

Option Scheme are as follows: BT
Options to subscribe for shares
TEERG BB
Outstanding Closing price
Lapsed/ at per share
Outstanding Granted/  Cancelled/ 31 December immediately
at 1 January Exercised Expired 2018 prior to the
2018 during during R=E-NE Exercise date of grant
RZB-N\E the year the year +=A price Date of ZERH Exercisable’
Type of grantees -A-H Em FR%%/ =t-8 per share grant =Yool period
REREAER MAGHE Rib/AE FH/ER O ERTE  SRAKE BEAE  SRUTE ke
(HKS) (HKS)
() ()
Other eligible participants 2910,000 - - 2910,000 1.761 22102010 205 22102012-21.10.2020
HitR RS EE
Subrtotal 2910,000 = = 2910,000
IEF
Employees of the Group 116,400 = 116,400 = 0957 01.04.2009 107 01.042011-31.03.2019
rEEER
Sub-total 116,400 - 116,400 -
P
Total 3026400 - 116400 2910,000
@it
Notes: Py -
1. These share options are exercisable in the following manner: 1. % 5B R AT R A T 05 AT
0] on or after the second anniversary of the date of 50% @ R E|4 HmmBEFEHL & 50%
grant up to 10 years from the date of grant EEFARLHEELI0F
(ii) REHBERAR=ZBFERI & T £ 50%

(i) on or after the third anniversary of the date of
grant up to 10 years from the date of grant

remaining 50%
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The share options granted under the Share Option Scheme are not recognized
as share capital in the financial statements of the Company until exercised.

The Share Option Scheme has expired on 16 March 2015, however, all the
outstanding share options are exercisable in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon which a
share option was granted, at any time during the option period after the share
option has been granted by the Board but in any event, not longer than ten (10)
years from the date upon which the share option is accepted or deemed to be
accepted in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

During the year, the Company has no new share option scheme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEERE#

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

The Directors and chief executive who held office at 31 December 2018 had
the following interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code:

EEREETT
RORBEHZHPHERZK

T —
N =

THRAE

X

iR £ - B8

B

4

NE+-_A=+—HRERNEFEES

TRAERARALREBBZB(ERERESFR
HEGRA(TEZRBERDS ) FEXVER) & 5
HERNDREFTHREASTARERE S BB K

Bl 326 BFE R E
e AR aE) MR T A e

.:EFH}WME%FTT
KRBT

SFRIE

(@) Long positions in the shares, underlying shares and (@ RAEAQXTRMG HBROREFHNER
debentures of the Company
Percentage
of the issued
share capital
asat
Number of Number of 31.12.2018
ordinary underlying ERA-E-N\&§ Amount of
shares held shares held +=ZA=+—H debentures
Name of Director Capacity FEEBR F&HE Total BRTRE held
EEnS a6 KRO#E KRO#E # 5t B  MBEHEE
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin Interest of controlled 507,188,592' = =
IR A corporation
REHEENER
Interest of spouse - 2,328,0002 -
[T ¥
Total 507,188,592 2,328,000 509,516,592 15.53% =
@5t
Notes: Mz -
1. These shares represent shares held by Metroasset Investments Limited in which Mr. 1. % & I 17 A R Metroasset Investments Limited £ B #Y
Hung Tsung Chin beneficially owns 45.09% of the issued share capital. B {n I XA B ER Z D 7 #Y4509% 2 B
TRRA -
2. The relevant interests are unlisted physically settled options granted to Ms. Chen 2. RS AREERE S A EREEENRE
Mei Huei, the spouse of Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. EERLTHRENIELITEYEEBERE T
Upon exercise of the share options in accordance with the Share Option Scheme, IRERIE AR 2T E  AATRATH
ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company HEALIOEITHL AR TRIT BERESS
are issuable. The share options are personal to the respective grantees. Further details EEATARE -BRENE —-SHBHAARE
of the share options are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this R REARAEET 8] —fF o
annual report.
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(b)

Long positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of associated corporations of the Company

Name of associated corporation:

Pro Brand Technology, Inc.

(b) RAQNBHEBZEZENRG  HEARGR
BENHER
FEHE B E 1 -
BAEMKXBRAR
(Pro Brand Technology, Inc.)

Percentage to
theissued
share capital
as at
Number of Number of 31.12.2018
ordinary underlying ER-E-N&E Amount of
shares held shares held +=ZA=+—H debentures
Name of Directors Capacity FEEER iEsyiElL Total BRITRE held
Esps 54 RGOBE RO HE st Bk FIRESHE
Mr. Chen Wei Chun Interest of controlled 350,000' =
BREHLE corporation
RERHEB A% R
Beneficial owner 150,000*
EREBA
Sub-total 500,000 - 500,000 0.63% -
et
Mr.Hung Tsung Chin Beneficial owner 250,000 - 250,000 031% -
HIRE R A& ESEAA
Notes: B 5
1. These shares represent 350,000 shares of Pro Brand Technology, Inc, a non-wholly 1. ZEBROAROMBEERADFENARA A
owned subsidiary of the Company, held by Jun Zhong Investment Limited* ($51{F #% F2EMBRAIEEMKAR A F*(ProBrand
& AR A 8)) in which Mr. Chen Wei Chun beneficially owns the entire issued share Technology, Inc.) #)350,000 % B% 1 + FRIES L £ &
capital. REAHHREERAANEIEHITRA -
2. These shares represent 150,000 shares of Pro Brand Technology, Inc., a non-wholly 2. ZEROARREARAFZEWNBRAREERREAE
owned subsidiary of the Company, owned by Mr. Chen Wei Chun. [ A &)*(Pro Brand Technology, Inc.) #9150,0008% 3% {5 -
HEREHTERES -
3. These shares represent 250,000 shares of Pro Brand Technology, Inc.,, a non-wholly 3. ZERMRERARBFEZ2ENBARIEERIEA

owned subsidiary of the Company, owned by Mr. Hung Tsung Chin.

*  For identification purpose only

* EHEEG

[ A &*(Pro Brand Technology, Inc.) #9250,0008% A% {7
IR R ERES -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

EEERE#

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2018, according to the register kept by the Company under

BREESRPEKRIETFHEENR
REZRAXE

RZE—NF+_A=+—H REXQRRE
BENBEGENENBEFENELHH  UTA

Section 336 of the SFO, the following companies and persons, other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company, had long positions of 5%
or more in the shares and underlying shares which fell to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares

ARALT(EERARAESTRABRINGES
REZBLSNBAEKMNEXNTE 20T REIDH
A AN T BT 5% PA _ERR D K 48 Bl AR 1D B
A

REBROREBRONE R
Percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital
ordinary as at
shares and 31.12.2018

underlying HR=ZZF—N\F
sharesheld +=HA=+—H

Name of Shareholders Capacity EEER 28T
BEREE g% REBERGEHE BABSH
Metroasset Investments Limited Beneficial owner 507,188,592 15.47%

Ms. Chen Mei Huei
BRERZ LT

E=HAA
Interest of controlled corporation

XA e ER

507,188,592?

Personal interest 2,328,000°
(PN &
Sub-total 509,516,592 15.53%
Nt
First Steamship Interest of controlled corporation 950,859,347* 29.00%
i REGEE O E S
Mr. Fung Chuen Beneficial owner 65,878,000 5.02%°
RBREE BEREAA
Notes: B 5T -
1. These shares are held by Metroasset Investments Limited, 45.09% of the issued share capital 1. 5% 35 B% 17 B Metroasset Investments Limited$5 74 * Tl Metroasset
of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Tsung Chin. Investments Limited #]45.09% B 3 /T IR AN L IR K 4 &
WA
2. These shares are the same batch of shares held by Metroasset Investments Limited, 44.38% of 2. 2% % B 19 B Metroasset Investments Limited 5 8 & [/ — #E A%

the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Ms. Chen Mei Huei.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EECRE@#

3. The relevant interests are unlisted physically settled options granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme. Upon exercise of the share options in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme, ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
are issuable.

4. First Steamship is interested in 950,859,347 shares through First Mariner Holding Limited, its
wholly-owned subsidiary, which holds 833,000,000 shares and Grand Citi Limited, its non-
wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 117,859,347 shares.

5. Disclosure of the percentage of the issued share capital held by Mr. Fung Chuen is made as
per the last disclosure of interests notice as at 31 December 2018 which was filed on 2 June
2017.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any other
person (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short positions of 5% or more in the shares and underlying
shares for the year ended 31 December 2018 which fell to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the laws
in Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
under which the Company would be obliged to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to the existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

3. AR ARIRRER T BRI MBS SRS -
HEREREERETBETER AT FEOIARAR
AR FREEIOB T LR -

4. 5 i i35 38 H 2 & Wi 8 A R First Mariner Holding Limited f £
3F 2 & M} B 2 ) Grand Citi Limited 2 950,859,347 f% A% 17 &
B #E 25 H P First Mariner Holding Limited # 4 833,000,000
& A% 1% K Grand Citi Limited 3% /8 117,859,347 IR A% 1% °

5. ERBREEMPBERTRAZAEDLNBREE NN =
ﬁ—tiﬁﬂfafﬁﬂzg—ﬂi+:ﬂz+—ﬂz
EEREREAEMNMED -
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—F-\FtZA=t+-RLEERGREE

RBRENEVBEDBREINBANKR
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the
Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained the amount of public
float as required under the Listing Rules throughout the year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
have been audited by BDO Limited. A resolution for the re-appointment of
BDO Limited as the Company’s auditor for the ensuing year is to be proposed
at the 2019 AGM.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing,
holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to the
shares, they are advised to consult an expert.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders’ eligibility to attend, speak
and vote at the 2019 AGM, the register of members of the Company (‘Register
of Members”) will be closed as appropriate as set out below:

Latest time to lodge transfer documents At 4:30 p.m. on

for registration with the Branch Share Wednesday, 5 June 2019
Registrar

Record Date Wednesday, 5 June 2019

Closure of the Register of Members Thursday, 6 June 2019 to
Wednesday, 12 June 2019

(both days inclusive)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EECRE@#

For purpose mentioned above, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Branch Share Registrar, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than the

aforementioned latest time.

For and on behalf of the Board
Lau Yau Cheung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
VR Y R

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

B
85 :

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANDMARTIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sandmartin
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to 263, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
BRI EREEMEBMARAR

+852 2218 8288
+852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HEETHEER11155
FkZHi>2518

HEFTERZERERQIAZERR
(REFREZELIMALZBRAF])
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BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3(b) in the consolidated financial statements, which
indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$187,435,000 attributable
to owners of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 and,
as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$268,981,000. As stated in note 3(b), these conditions, along with other
matter as set forth in note 3(b), indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In
addition to the matter described in the “Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern” section, we have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of receivables

(Refer to notes 5, 20, 24 and 38 (b) to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had several receivables from an
associate, Dish Media Network Limited, including (i) loan to an associate of
HK$22,137,000; and (ii) amount due from an associate of HK$113,702,000. In
addition, the Group had trade and bills receivables of HK$287,022,000 as at 31
December 2018.

The Group applied HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) on 1 January
2018 and impairment on these balances has to be recognised on an expected
credit loss ("ECLs") approach.

The Group elected to measure loss allowances for amount due from an
associate which is trade in nature and trade and bills receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has engaged an independent specialist in assisting the Group to establish a
provision matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the associate and the economic

environment.

The Group measured the ECLs of loan to an associate at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs. The 12-month ECLs is the portion of the lifetime ECLs that
represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. When determining
whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group has engaged an independent
specialist to consider reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

We identified impairment assessment of receivables as a key audit matter
because significant amount of judgment and estimation was involved in
determining the ECLs allowance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of receivables (Continued)

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
included:

— Obtaining an understanding of and evaluating the design and
implementation of internal controls relating to credit control, debt
collection, estimate of expected credit losses and making related
allowances under ECL model;

—  Obtaining and understanding on the key data and assumptions of the
expected credit loss model adopted by the Group;

—  Assessing the appropriateness of groupings of trade receivables into
categories of shared credit risk characteristics;

—  Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing analysis of trade
receivables;

—  Testing the accuracy and evaluating the relevance of the historical loss
data as an input to the ECL model;

—  Evaluating whether the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward looking information
to assess the reasonableness of the expected credit loss rates; and

—  Evaluating the independent specialist's competence, capabilities and
objectivity.

Impairment of goodwill and related intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment

(Refer to notes 5, 14, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of goodwill, intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment amounted to HK$10,208,000,
HK$13,165,000 and HK$69,488,000 respectively are attributable to the
satelhte TV equipment and antenna cash-generating unit and the satellite TV
broadcasting cash-generating unit and are assessed annually for impairment.
The Group made losses for the current and previous years. This situation
increases the risk that the carrying value of these assets may be impaired.

Impairment tests require the estimation of recoverable amounts of the relevant
cash-generating units. The recoverable amounts of the above mentioned
cash-generating units were determined using value in use calculations, based
on discounted future cash flows as detailed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill and related intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The Group also engaged an independent external valuer to assist management
in assessing the recoverable amount of the satellite TV broadcasting cash-
generating unit.

An impairment loss on goodwill attributable to the satellite TV broadcasting
cash-generating unit amounted to HK$97,643,000 has been recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2018, and no impairment loss on goodwill
attributable to the satellite TV equipment and antenna cash-generating unit is
recognised.

We identified the impairment assessment as a key audit matter because of
its significance to the consolidated financial statements and as it involves a
significant degree of judgement made by management which includes:

—  Preparing future cash flow forecasts for the relevant cash generating
units; and

—  Selecting and applying appropriate growth and discount rates

Our response
Our key procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
included:

— Assessing the reliability of management’s forecasts by comparing
previous budgets to actual results;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions of the forecasts
based on our knowledge of the industry and evidence provided;

—  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and checking the
mathematical accuracy of the value in use calculations;

—  Evaluating the independent external valuer's competence, capabilities
and objectivity; and

— Involving our valuation specialists to assess the appropriateness of the
methodologies adopted and the reasonableness of the discounted rates
used in the cash flow forecasts for the satellite TV broadcasting cash-
generating unit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

BN A RS (&

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the

Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their

responsibility in this regard.

FHRAHthE R

HEEAY AARAHBAHEBE - HpAHE
B EARFHARAL  HTEERAMBRE
RAZBEI R -

BPEFEEPBHRRNERLTREELMER &
PR~ S EMERER T ANEER

RRMBEZGAMBHREAME  RANEEREHE
HER  REERET  EEEMENEEREE
MBBRABMERZBRETEENENFEEXR
TR FUFFEERBRRAL - ERHFIE AT
BT MEFMRRBLEEMERBEABRRL -
BAEREZFE - R - RPORBEMRS

EERARSUMBBRRARENEE

EXRAERBEESHMOSRMOETEY R
SEARFAERRGAZEERE  REEEMA
FHEAMBRE  YEEERRREGEWER
RFTBEZNRREE - NEHFEMBHRR N FER
IAERFF 88 AR T G B B A SR B -

RimERA M B HRRE EFAAANE E5H
SERLENREN YEERBRATREESELS
HENEER  WERARKELERSER  KIFE

EEER BERERRIFLELEHFEEBER
MBERTE -
EENRERE BESBMBRBER- - BRZ

BeWBESTETH I MBS -

2018 Annual Report / Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 81
2018 F W/ BE T BHFIZERBR AR



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

Ja) N A% BX AN R (&

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

BN A RS (&

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as

a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

B AN RS (&

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong

Practising Certificate Number P05440

Hong Kong, 21 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

,—\—./\ |:|\/

= H b 2 T 4 o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHET TAT
Revenue U 2= 6 1,300,358 1,544,838
Cost of sales $5 & gl 7R (1,284,414) (1,468,119)
Gross profit E F 15,944 76,719
Other income, gains and losses HmA - Wz REE 49,055 42,704
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of BEENDNTLECHD), L
investment properties 16 (1,526) 19,580
Impairment loss on goodwill 78 2R B B 18 17 (97,643) (28,000)
Distribution and selling costs G K i & R AR (44,921) (44,113)
Administrative and other expenses TH R EMAS (171,158) (177,582)
Research and development costs fiff 2% 5 A (31,530) (37,206)
Share of profit of an associate FE 4G — B & 2 B A 5 A 19 14,107 8,088
Expected credit loss on financial assets PREERHEEEE 984 -
Finance costs B & Bk AR 8 (32,436) (27,223)
Loss before income tax expense FriEf X HATE 18 (299,124) (167,033)
Income tax expense FriS i 2 1 9 (3,706) (8,758)
Loss for the year KEEEIE 10 (302,830) (175,791)
Other comprehensive income H fth 2 H Uk 2=
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to HEl T g8 BEEn
profit or loss: BIIEH :
— Re-measurement gain on AERAEE®
defined benefit plan BN ERE 31 18 23
— Gain on revaluation of properties — B ERE 44,208 -
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HinptE n B E B
profit or loss: BIIEH :
— Exchange differences on translation of —HMEBINEBOEN ZHE
foreign operations (7,468) (10,699)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHMEE WG 36,758 (10,676)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2HKNZHTE (266,072) (186,467)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
reBalEMEERER@E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 THERT TAT
Loss for the year attributable to: THEEEGEAFEERS:
— Owners of the Company — KRR AEA A (187,435) (105,798)
— Non-controlling interests — IR ER (115,395) (69,993)
(302,830) (175,791)
Total comprehensive income attributableto: T 5| & B E{E 2 H UK 45 ¢
— Owners of the Company — KA AEAR A (150,362) (115,848)
— Non-controlling interests — JEERER (115,710) (70,619)
(266,072) (186,467)
Loss per share BREE 13 HK cents HK cents
AL AL
— Basic — &K (5.7) (4.5)
— Diluted — 88 (5.7) (4.5)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR e B AR SR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
R-FB-—NEF+=H=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
Mo 5E F#& T FET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 14 99,432 149,844
Prepaid lease payments BN E B 15 1,261 5,037
Investment properties KEWE 16 149,738 73,681
Goodwill = 17 10,208 108,297
Intangible assets B EE 18 13,165 17,368
Interest in an associate 75A B 2 N A B FE 2 19 67,800 59,325
Loan to an associate BT BB ARINER 20 22,137 =
Loan receivables Fﬁ IL@=Es 21 = 8,794
Deferred tax assets EEFIEA E 22 3,147 6,438
Total non-current assets EMBEELRE 366,888 428,784
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 143,308 258,428
Trade, bills and other receivables FEUWE SRR PEE U Z= 15
K H A e K 24 389,259 299,126
Prepaid lease payments FEEERRIE 15 65 163
Loan receivables e & K 21 8,794 =
Amount due from an associate fE U — B R B Y SRIE 20 113,702 71,444
Pledged bank deposits BEEMEITHER 25 1,643 66
Bank balances and cash RITEGFERR® 26 72,695 132,418
729,466 761,645
Assets classified as held for sale PEAEBELENEE 27 = 97,396
Total current assets mEE EBRE 729,466 859,041
Current liabilities RBaE
Trade, bills and other payables ENESER BNEE
o B A FE S BB 28 505,222 510,401
Contract liabilities AEHEEAE 29 23,614 =
Tax liabilities HIEAE 13,371 16,973
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 30 454,343 392,022
Obligations under finance leases &S A E 32 1,897 1,886
Total current liabilities mE B EERE 998,447 921,282
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (268,981) (62,241)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERARBERS 97,907 366,543
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
ire B IR LR (4

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
T \F+-H=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
D FET TH&T
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 30 4,728 1,131
Deferred tax liabilities REHIEAE 22 53,448 41,142
Defined benefit obligation AERBHEE 31 136 103
Obligations under finance leases BhE R E A 32 5,481 7,375
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERE 63,793 49,751
Net assets EEFRE 34,114 316,792
Capital and reserves attributable to owners 2 T #HEHE A B {5 R A& K &6
of the Company
Share capital A% Zx 33 327,882 327,882
Reserves ER] 66 156,548
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR &l #E A A FE (5 #E 327,948 484,430
Non-controlling interests FE 1 AR 44 (293,834) (167,638)
Total equity B 34,114 316,792
On behalf of the directors REE=S
Hung Tsung Chin Chen Wei Chun
HEE FRIZ#9
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE o= \E =B =1—EIEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
EDAEEAEL
Share Defined Property  Currency Non-
Share Share option  Statutory  benefit plan Special revaluation translation ~Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Totl  interests Total
RERH NXER  ENEE
Rx  ROEE BRERE iERE SHRE  GHRE i R  Z2iER it FeREs ai
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK'000 HK'000 HK000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000
TiEn TR TER Tk ThR AL T T TR TR Tin TiEn
(notea) (note b) (note )
(GES) (Wio)  (Wikc)
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZB-t§-A-Bz&H 13113 479763 7960 31480 - 89175 79577 1790 (4605000 376588 (©4470) 282118
Lossfor theyear AERER = = = = = = = - (0578 (105799) 69993 (175791)
Other comprehensiveincome ~ Eft 2 AM &
— Re-measurement gain on —RERHEN
defined benefit plans Effit NG - - - - i - - - - B - B
— Exchange differences on —RAEENER
transltion offoreign EEMERER
operations = = = = = = = (10073) = (10073) (626) (106%9)
Total comprehensiveincome ~ AEE2EREAE
for the year - - - = B = = (10073) (105,798) (115,848) (70619 (186467)
Issue of ordinary shares (ote 33) 47 AR (1 5833) 9,29 26987 - - - - - - - W16 - W16
Disposal of subsiciares (note 34) i & 1 B2 Al (i3E34) - - - (26) - - - - - (2) - 26
Acquisiton ofnon-controlling B JEIR RIS
interest - - - - = - - = = = () ®
Dividend paid tonon-controlling A2 Al —FH B A A
interest by a subsidiary of AERRER
the Company ERRRE = = = = = = = = = = (2507 (2507)
Transfer HE - - - 491 - - - - (491) - = =
Balanceat31December2017  W=B-t£+=f=1-H
as originally presented S (MEAZ5) 327882 506750 7,960 31,945 3 89,175 79577 7907 (566789) 484430 (167638) 316792
Initial application of HKFRS 9 EREREAHBREEN
(note2) £9% (M) ° ° ° - - - - - (6,120) (6120 - (6120
Restarted balance asat R=Z-NE-A-H2
1January 2018 LER L 327,882 506,750 7,960 31,945 3 89,175 79,571 7907 (572,909) 478310 (167,638) 310,672
Lossforthe year REEER - - - - - - - - (18743) (187435 (115395 (302830)
Other comprehensiveincome ~ Eft 2 AN
— Revaluation of properties LT - - - - - - 44,208 - - 44,208 S 44,208
— Re-measurement gain on — RN
defined benefit plans i% HELE - - - - 18 - - - - 18 S 18
— Exchange differences on RAGENEHMELR
translation offoreign EXZER
operations - - - - - - - (7,153) - (7,153) (315) (7,468)
Total comprehensiveincome ~ AEE2ARHAE
for the year - - - - 18 - 44,208 (7,153) (187,435) (150,362) (115,710) (266,072)
Transfer &% - - - 541 - - - - (541) - - -
Revaluation reserereleaseon I ERENERREER
disposal of investment property {;ﬁ% - - - - - - (49,151) - 49,151 - - -
Share repurchase KiEE - - - - - - - - - - (384) (384)
Dividend paid tonon-contalling A2 &) —RIM B A AR R
interest by a subsiciary of E#k HH%E\
the Company - - - - - - - - - - (10,102) (10,102)
Balanceat31 December2018  W=E-NE+ZB=+-R
8 327,882 506,750 7,960 32,486 H 89,175 74,634 754 (711,734) 327,948 (293,834) 34114
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

l\\/T\

SERBDE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

e

Notes:

©

20

—E2-N\E+ZA=+—HLEFE

The statutory reserve is required by the relevant law of The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC. The statutory reserve can be applied in
conversion into PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of a capitalisation issue.

The special reserve represents:

(i) the difference between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries
and the nominal value of the Company's shares issued for the acquisition at the time
of a group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares and the surplus
arising pursuant to a capitalisation of advances from shareholders as part of the

group reorganisation;

(ii) the difference between the consideration for acquisition of a subsidiary satisfied by
way of partial interest of a subsidiary without the overall gain or loss of control in the
partial disposed subsidiary and the fair value of net asset acquired; and

(iii) the acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary without the overall gain or loss of

control in that subsidiary.

The property revaluation reserve is frozen upon the transfer of properties from property, plant
and equipment to investment properties and will be transferred to accumulated losses when
the relevant properties are disposed of.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

wealemER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
0 FE T FHT
Cash flows from operating activities REXEBHAERE
Loss before income tax expense Fr 5 % 2 AT & 18 (299,124) (167,033)
Adjustments for: RTHELFE
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHH 4,524 4,719
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #12£ ~ B E M X EITE 26,050 29,154
Finance cost Bl & P AN 32,436 27,223
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEWME  BELKE
plant and equipment BB (as) 2,346 (1,225)
Impairment loss on property, Y BERREREEE
plant and equipment 1,723 -
Impairment loss on trade and FEUE 5 AR 3 K i & W 3k I8
other receivables BB &R = 20,273
Impairment loss on inventory FEREESRE 351 20,474
Impairment loss on goodwill BERBEEE 17 97,643 28,000
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and ERE ZERREZRHE
loan receivables EEE L - (32,199)
Reversal of impairment loss on inventory GFERBEBERED (21,202) =
Expected credit loss on financial assets CTRIEETRHEEERE (984) =
Interest income FE WA (5,500) (2,057)
Release of prepaid lease payments B B 78 4 10 & R E 163 156
Decrease/(Increase) in fair value of BB ER N TEER LD (Em)
investment properties 1,526 (19,580)
Interest income from an associate ®E—EEE AR AF B U A (1,013) (1,598)
Written-off of interest receivable from MsEk 8 — MBS QAR
an associate JE W F1) 2 1,770
Share of result of an associate FE 15 — [ E af ERRMER (14,107) (8,088)
Loss on disposal of subsidiary HEWNB R/ EE 2,247 157
Operating cash flows before working BE2EHANKLERERE
capital changes (171,151) (101,624)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERA,GEM) 137,787 (12,978)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade, JEWE SR - BINEE &
bills and other receivables H b & Y FOE (B8 n), R (82,107) 45,240
Increase in defined benefit obligation ﬁm%m FI & (E 120 33 103
Decrease in trade, bills and other payables B E SR BRNEER
H {th jE A~ OB R (2,129) (74,018)
Increase in contract liabilities BRI B EIL M 23,614 =
(Increase)/Decrease in amount due from JiE Ui — Fi Bt 2 B) B9 FO0B
associate (=), w (80,506) 16,987
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

SeRTRERGE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff 2 FE T TAT

Cash used in operations 1 R Fﬁ AR (174,459) (126,290)
Income tax paid B EH (5,599) (11,391)
Interest received 2 F 5,500 2,057
Interest paid 2 RF A (32,436) (27,223)
Net cash used in operating activities ARSI & EEE (206,994) (162,847)
Cash flows from investing activities REEXEKBEESRE
(Increase)/Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2R ITFER L),/ D (1,963) 14,421
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME  WE RZHEMEHIE

plant and equipment 9,078 11,789
Proceeds from disposal of asset held for sale HEZEHEEEMESRIE 97,396 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BEELKE (13,356) (35,860)
Net cash outflow arising from disposal BEHE—HENBRARMELRS

of subsidiary SN SRR 34 (41) (154)
Addition to intangible assets RNEBFEE (292) (120)
Repayment from an associate — M R EER 2,036 11,670
Net cash from investing activities REXZKHFHE F5E 92,858 1,746
Cash flows from financing activities METHHEESRE
New bank and other loans raised HMERITREMER 301,274 493,073
Repayment of borrowings BREEXR (233,774) (499,066)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases 18 i g & 0 & & 12 (1,955) (1,955)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest by AKRaE)—EH BT

a subsidiary of the Company JE 58 IS RE 25 R 5 B9 B B (10,102) (2,507)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest U BE JF 0 A% A 25 (384) (42)
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BT BT S RIRERE = 223,716
Net cash from financing activities BE TR HE 2 FE 55,059 213,219
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBLEEWORD) &

cash equivalents FH (59,077) 52,118
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FRENIREEZFEY

the year 132,418 76,065
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INETE R BB & (646) 4,235
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year EREBASREEEEY 72,695 132418
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBSEBYEHR DN

cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash RITEFRAS 72,695 132,418
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R 2R BT o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —REH
The Company is incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its RKAREAREAMKZZ2EBR AR ERHD
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock REBBAEXRSMAR AR ([BZFT]) £ o
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and principle place of ARATEMIEERE R T ELE M2 R E
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information RAER AR ER—ED °

section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereafter referred to as the “Group”) AR REWB AR (A TEREAEE]) E
engages in manufacturing and trading of satellite TV equipment ENEFEERREEMRAMS FERAR
products and other electronic goods and satellite TV broadcasting. The EREGREEERERE AMBARICEE
details of principle activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to EEHBHNGE WIS HRRMTTE44 -

the consolidated financial statements.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRMEBUBHREZEN(EBUHK

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) HEZEL )

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January (a) BRAFH RETEBMBREE
2018 BA—R=ZB-NF-A—-BEX
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time BEIBREE BB RERENE 1R

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle adoption of Hong Kong Financial ZE-MERZT-NE BREGREENE
Reporting Standards BEEEME W 2B
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in BB REER BHQENE 8RR
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle Associates and Joint Ventures “E-MEZ-EAE BENRRAELER
B FREYE REZER]
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based BRI EREES AR AERNFTR S
Payment Transactions FIF BT LABREE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BEMBREENER  2@IA
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers BANBREENE 5% BPANOkE
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers BATEREE] RPEN g (B
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15) R 1552 B3] BRGNS 155
LEE)
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property BESHENEOR 2B ERRENE
HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and 6 (BB KRL AR oMEZ B RFERNRE
Advance Consideration ZER)-2BED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_T- \F+-A=t+—BItFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle — Amendments
to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of HKFRSs, removing transition provision exemptions
relating to accounting periods that had already passed and were
therefore no longer applicable.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the periods to which the transition
provision exemptions related have passed.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle — Amendments to
HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS
28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, clarifying that a
Venture Capital organisation’s permissible election to measure its
associates or joint ventures at fair value is made separately for each
associate or joint venture. It also clarifies a non-investment entity
investor may elect to retain the fair value accounting applied by its
investment entity associate or joint venture and this election can
be made separately for each investment entity associate or joint

venture.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group is not a venture capital

organisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement of Share-
Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting for the
effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement
of cash-settled share-based payments; share-based payment
transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and conditions of
a share-based payment that changes the classification of the

transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group does not have any cash-
settled share-based payment transaction and has no share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding

tax.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

(i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments
HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments:
(1) classification and measurement; (2) impairment and (3)
hedge accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 January
2018 has resulted in changes in accounting policies of the
Group and the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.

KMBBUBHREER (FRMK
WEER ) (F)

(a)

RANHE] RETEBYBREE
Bl —R=ZZB-NF-A-B4£EX
(&)

BB B EERE 25 2 BT — UK
D RERN KX GH T EREE
EFIATRERERE IR ERTHRE
REUABRNSERNRZFENTE
RIEMRETAEAFRAEEREZ AR
MRERNRRS - WREXZEHH
ReRkEEE ARaGE UKD AER
IR R A ZER] 2 BFTRRIBIRE ©

AAREE I BT AR EEARD RE
BN zR5 - BAERBHNHREGF
BEEBENURN SERNRR S
BERMZFEFT A YR SR HERRLE
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= °

BB GHEERIFE N — 2 LA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January

2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments

(Continued)

The following tables summarised the impact, net of
tax, of transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening balance of

accumulated losses as of 1 January 2018 as follows:

2. RMBEMBREREN(EFEBHE

wEER ) ()

(@) BRMHET RETEBUHBREE
B —R=ZF-NF-F—-B4EX

(%)

BB IHEERFE N — 2R T A(E)
() ZBTAMSBERAEE)

AT RIRE M BE E BB HR
EHFORHENR T N\F—H—

H
=]

B2 RFFERBIHRENFTE

BRARIB) 40T
HKS$'000
FA T
Accumulated losses REtBiE
Accumulated losses as at 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+-_HA=+—H
ZRFTER (566,789)
Increase in expected credit losses (“ECLs”) in trade FEUWE 5 BR 3 K P U — R B
receivables and trade receivable due from NAIBE SRR ZEBHEEEE
an associate (note 2(a)(ii) below) ([FEEA(= & 518 |) 12 hn
("~ X Bt &t 2@@)(ii)) (4,920)
Increase in ECLs in loan receivables at amortised cost R ANFTE M EINE KB
(note 2(a)(ii) below) = BB (XM AT 22)i0) (1,200)
Restated accumulated losses as at 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—HF—HZ
REHNRAER (572,909)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i

Classification and measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, where the amount of change in
fair value attributable to change in credit risk of the liability
is recognised in other comprehensive income unless
that would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.
However, it eliminates the previous HKAS 39 categories for
financial assets of held to maturity financial assets, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no material impact on the
Group's accounting policies related to financial liabilities
and derivative financial instruments. The impact of HKFRS 9
on the Group's classification and measurement of financial
assets is set out below.

2. RMBEMBREREN(EFEBHE

WwEZERA L ()

(a) BREAHET BT ERHBRE R
Bl—R=-B-NF-A-BEX
()
B WA LAESS — BT AH)
() EBTANHERE (E)

BREMBRELMNE SR ES
SEIERIEFEA T BREZE
R DEEFERTE  HETER
BaREAFEEIRZMBEE
RO MBEEERRESS 2
NHEEZHESENE 2K
MER - FRIFRELARBEBAG R
AVERIGR © EHN - BRI S IRMELE
A SRARB BB ST ERE 395k
RILERNBEERYBREBZR
E o A HBURB B G RIS
VMEAMMBFEEIHEREE
ERMERFERAHEESRE
ENTREERR - RABT BB
HEEAEORHUAEEBRATR
BERTESRMITANSBERL
BEAYE - BEMBHREERSE
VRHAKESRMEEDENTE
VREIIMT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2.

28

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i

Classification and measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade receivables (that
the trade receivables do not contain a significant financing
component in accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall, at
initial recognition, measure a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs. A financial
asset is classified as: (i) financial assets at amortised cost
(“amortised costs"); (i) financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"); or (iii) FVTPL (as
defined in above). The classification of financial assets
under HKFRS 9 is generally based on two criteria: (i) the
business model under which the financial asset is managed
and (i) its contractual cash flow characteristics (the “solely
payments of principal and interest” criterion, also known
as “SPPI criterion”). Under HKFRS 9, embedded derivatives
is no longer required to be separated from a host financial
asset. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument is assessed as
a whole for the classification.

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited / 2018 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and it has not been
designated as at FVTPL:

[t is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that meet the SPPI
criterion.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of
the following conditions and it has not been designated as
at FVTPL:

[t is held within a business model whose objective is
to achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that meet the SPPI

criterion.

KMBBUBHREER (FRMK
wmEZER ) (&)

RANHE] RETEBYBREE
Bl —R=ZZB-NF-A-B4£EX

BB IHEERFE SN — 2R T A(E)

R TR B RAE ()

ETREERBNANATERS - B
WERERAFES AR - QX
TREER B KA E

ZeREER B ERA
HESREENKRELHR
TREMNEBEAMTE
K

ZERMEENS ORKER
FEBRBMEENAEMNAN
T RMEERNRERE

HEBKERBRFE AN RS - B
W IR E R A FET AR - Bl
BEHRRERAFES AR BEEE

S 2

B

ZEBRE R — @ E &£ R
BRRERENRHEEHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i

Classification and measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election is made on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. All other financial assets
not classified at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are classified as FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or FVOC|
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an

accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

The accounting policies would be applied to the Group's

financial assets as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)
The following table summarises the original measurement
categories under HKAS 39 and the new measurement
categories under HKFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s

2. MEERHBREEN(FRME
wE2ER ) ()
(a) WA BETEEHBRESR
Bl —R=-B-NF-A-BEX
(%)
BB RAIES — 2 BT AE)
() SBIANHERIEE)

TERBARNEBR -_F—N\F—A
—HRHESREERBE LG E
AIFE 39K R A BRI RRERE
B E RN SRV FTET B 1R -

financial assets as at 1 January 2018:

Original classification

New classification

Carrying
amount as at
1 January 2018

Carrying
amount as at
1 January 2018

Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39  under HKFRS 9
BREEEST RBREFBUK
ER|ZE395 WMELEREIR
BREFBEMERE R-Z—N\F RZZE-N\F
REFBEHEN ERIFEIHH —A—H —HA—H
TREE EIREFER Rl H BR [ B Y BR E B
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHT
Trade, bills and other receivables  Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 299,126 298,293
EWE ZERXR  BWERE B3 & W TE B H AR
o B A pE W R IR
Amount due from an associate Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 71,444 66,157
(including loan receivable)
FE U — BB R R Bk & IR 55 PR AR
KRB (BREERER)
Pledged bank deposits Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 66 66
BHEAEITER B &R 55 PR AR
Bank balances and cash Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 132,418 132,418
RITEFREAS B K EWREIE B SH AR
Loan receivables Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 8,794 8,794

J& U & 7K

This is no change in the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for the Group's financial

ER R ESRIA

liabilities upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

REABBH B MEERIESRIL -
g

AEETRAEIER

R

ERTEMELZLE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group’s
impairment model by replacing the HKAS 39 “incurred
loss model” to the “expected credit losses (‘ECLs") model”.
HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognised ECL for trade
receivables, financial assets at amortised costs, contract
assets and debt investment at FVOC! earlier than HKAS 39.
Cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits are
subject to ECL model but the impairment is immaterial for
the current period.

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are
the ECLs that result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12 months ECLs. The 12 months ECLs is the portion of the
lifetime ECLs that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will
be based on the lifetime ECLs. When determining whether
the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both gquantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
(1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial
asset is more than 90 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

2. BB RBUEREER(FEME
HEZERA ) (&)
(@) HMHFT LEITEBMBREE
Al — R=ZFB-NE—B—H4EX
(%)
BB R ERE oS — o T A (&)
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FEHEEBEENGTE (&)
REHMERSREEMS @ BHE
EEERE 128 ATRHEEEEE
E o A ATEREERIEAFEA
%E,Hm:iéréﬂéiz—ﬁl% n o HIRBA
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REE R R EEE LM - BES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

2. HMERMBHRELER (BFBYE
wmEZER ) (&)

(@) BRMHET RETEBUHBREE

Bl —R=ZZ2-NF-A—-B4EX

(%)

BB IHEERFE N — 2R T A(E)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) () ZEEEGEEE)
Presentation of ECLs THHEEBEZEY
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised RBEENAFTE 2 eREEZEIE
cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the BENEEZARIES MK -
assets.
Impact of the ECL model EEEEERREN 22
As mentioned above, the Group applies the HKFRS 9 PN Pt NEBERBE B
simplified approach to measure ECLs which recognises B EERF R B AFT=TE
lifetime ECLs for all trade receivables. To measure the ECLs, BEEEEE  UWEZERIE S
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared R EHEHREEEE - Azt
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The loss TEHEEEE  BRESERERER
allowance as at 1 January 2018 was determined for trade BEHRAEERREE R BARECE
receivables and trade receivables due from an associate as 1I904# - LEWE SRR L EKR—
follows: A= AR 2 EIE SRR IELR 2
RZZE—-—N\F-—HA—HZEERE
EEWT:
Trade receivables H 5 W EIE
Less than 3to6 Morethan
3 months months 6 months
Current  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue Total
AHRE AY= pHER
1January 2018 “E2-N\§-8-H B & =R Z~MEA ~MEA @
Expected credit loss rate (%) BHEEBBEZ©® 2.3% 2.8% 12.0% 89.9% 38.8%
Gross carrying amount (HKS'000) REEE(TET) 153,039 31,697 40294 154,844 379,874
Loss allowance (HK$000) BEREEHE(TAET) 3,566 1,268 3396 140381 148611
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Impact of the ECL model (Continued)
Trade receivables due from an associate

2. RMBEMBREREN(EFEBHE

wEERD ) (&)
(@) BRMHET RETEBUHBHREE

Bl —R=ZZB-NF-A-B4£EX

BRI R ERIE O — M LA (E)

TREENBE (&)
BEMEEBREAZTE(E)
FEUr— R 2 R B 2RI B R

Less than 3to6 Morethan
3 months months 6 months
Current  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue Total
AEFE BH= ANESA
1 January 2018 —EZ-\¥—-A—-H B £ =#BA ZAMEA ~fEAR @5t
Expected credit loss rate (%) BHEEEEE©®) 9.9% 9.9% 9.9% =
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REAE(FEL 5,640 12,287 23428 - 41,355
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EREE(TET) 557 1215 2315 - 4087

The increase in loss allowance for trade receivables and
trade receivables due from an associate upon the transition
to HKFRS 9 as of 1 January 2018 were HK$833,000 and
HK$4,087,000. The loss allowances has been reversed for
HK$9,015,000 for trade receivables and further increased for
HKS$8,100,000 for trade receivables due from an associate
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Applying the ECL model on loan receivable result in the
recognition of ECL of HK$ 1,200,000 on 1 January 2018.

RZZE—NF—A—RABEEERHE
BTSSR B SE OBk RS - BB E
SENRER—BHBEAT 2B
SRFEL 2 BEEE D RGN
833,000/ 7T 54,087,000/ JT > B
HE-_ZT-N\F+=-A=+—HIL
FE - BEOEKESENBERE
9,015,000 7T + M EUW —EHEZ 2~
Al B S RNEBEERAE— DI
$18,100,000 7T °

HEWE R EREREEREEER
BYR T \F— A —HBHHERAE
HA{= & /E538 1,200,000 78 7T °

2018 Annual Report / Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 1 05

20183/ EF T BRERARAF



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iii)

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision in HKFRS 9
such that HKFRS 9 was generally adopted without restating
comparative information. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new ECLs rules are therefore
not reflected in the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017, but are recognised in the statement
of financial position on 1 January 2018. This mean that
differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS
9 are recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at
1 January 2018. Accordingly, the information presented
for 2017 does not reflect the requirements of HKFRS 9 but
rather those of HKAS 39.

The following assessments have been made on the basis of
the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9 (the “DIA”):

The determination of the business model within
which a financial asset is held;

The designation and revocation of previous
designations of certain financial assets and financial
liabilities as measured at FVTPL; and

The designation of certain investments in equity
investments not held for trading as at FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts, HKAS 18
Revenue and related interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a
five-steps model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at the
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a

customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect
method without practical expedients. The Group has recognised
the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 15 as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at the
date of initial application (that is, T January 2018). As a result, the
financial information presented for 2017 has not been restated.

The following tables summarised the impact of adopting HKFRS 15
on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018. There was no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of cash flow and loss per share
for the year ended 31 December 2018:

KMBBUBHREER (FRMK
WEER ) (F)

(a)

RANHE] RETEBYBREE
Bl —R=ZZB-NF-A-B4£EX
(&)

BB BREERE 15 FEPEHZK
([ BB BFHREERE 1555 ])
BEMBHREENE 1SHMAFTE S
ERFENREERD BAGTEAF
185 R AR E - BEMBHEE
AIE SRR —ERFER - ABEF
BRI - RIFEBEM B REER
F15%  WRIRERREBENRAT
FHEZBEMIMBIER B M A EESTH
RESHEER -

\:

AEEERBRFIZEEIRATENS
HELERNFE 1SR (BATEREE) - AN
SEEBNAERAEENBRELRE
153 RAFERRB /R YIRER B H
(B =F—-N\F—A—H)8RERN
REHROFE - At —FT—LF 27
WM BEEMLARENZS -

TERBAR=ZZFE—-N\EFE+=_A=+—H
KB BB REEE 15REREE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRMNEBNBHREEN(EBHHK

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) HMEAER ) (4])

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January (@) HRMFTBEITEBMEREE
2018 (Continued) B —RA=Z2—-NE—B—HB&EX

(#&)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (‘HKFRS 157) BB BEIREERE 157 FEFEH 2K
(Continued) ([ BB BIREZERIE 1558 )) (&)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position as of HE-_Z— N\F+-_A=+—B¥%4E
31 December 2018 MBI R E

Amounts Hypothetical

reported in amounts
accordance under HKASs Increase/
with HKFRS 15 18and 11 (Decrease)
BEFEME JFHEESEA
& 2R FI8HR
FISHERE 1158 T
K &5 BRELE B CED)
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT TAT
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Contract liabilities SEHEE 23614 = 23,614
Trade, bills and other payables BN E SRR - BN EE R 505,222 528,836 (23,614)
H h JE < ;RIE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

EMEEMBREREDN(FEME

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued) WEAER]) (8])
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January (a)

2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15")

(Continued)

Details of the new significant accounting policies and the nature
of the changes to previous accounting policies in relation to the
Group's various goods and services are set out below:

RANHE] RETEBYBREE

Bl —R=ZZB-NF-A-B4£EX

(%)

BB B HEERE IS KEFPE N

m ([BE RS ERE 1555 1) (&)

o :

FRASESEER RRENFTERS
AR EER G B REHNFISHI

Note

Product/service

Em/R%

Nature of the goods or services, satisfaction of
performance obligations and payment terms

EmdBBctE BOREZETRER
R AR

Nature of change
in accounting policy and
impact on 1 January 2018

BHHEBBZHER
R=®-NF-A—H
ye

Trading of satellite TV
equipment products and
other electronic goods

Customers obtain control of the satellite TV equipment
products and other electronic goods when the goods
are delivered to and have been accepted. Revenue
is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the satellite TV equipment products and
other electronic goods. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable
within 60 to 120 days.

REEERRBERIAMEFERRNTE
FIEZFEKE TFREZZEEMZE
HE Bt WREREFEMNHEERR
HERIHEMEFERKER BFERFE
—HEARE - BRARRNOE120RAMN

(i

(i)

Satellite TV broadcasting

Revenue for satellite TV broadcasting generally
includes only one performance obligation. The
Group has concluded that revenue from satellite
TV broadcasting should be recognised over time as
those services are provided.

HEERERZUZARERR—HBENEE-
AEERR BESRERZRAEEER
MRS 2 B 8 T IARERR -

HKFRS 15 did not result in
significant impact on the
Company's accounting policies.
Upon the adoption of HKFRS
15 advance from customers
recognised in relation to the
sale of good were classified
from other payables to contract
liabilities.

BAMBHRELERNF IS5 IL
BUARARAZ G HERE
HEARE - REBRER
FHHRELERE 155 %
RHEEEMBERAZERE
REREMENRED R
REHAR-

7l

2018 Annual Report / Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 1 09
2018 F W/ BE T BHFIZERBR AR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of principal
versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and transition

requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group had not previously adopted
HKFRS 15 and took up the clarifications in this, its first, year.

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment Property — Transfers of
Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from investment
properties there must be a change in use and provides guidance
on making this determination. The clarification states that a
change of use will occur when a property meets, or ceases
to meet, the definition of investment property and there is
supporting evidence that a change has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of evidence in the
standard as a non-exhaustive list, thereby allowing for other forms
of evidence to support a transfer.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the clarified treatment is consistent with
the manner in which the Group has previously assessed transfers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE—

F-NFTA=1T—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining the date
of the transaction for determining an exchange rate to use for
transactions that involve advance consideration paid or received in
a foreign currency and the recognition of a non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability. The Interpretations specifies that the date
of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part thereof) is the date on which the entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability

arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group has not paid or received

advance consideration in a foreign currency.

2. HRMBERBMBREE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group's current intention is to apply these changes on the date
they become effective.
HKFRS 16 Leases'
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

2. EMEEBUBREEN(HFRME
wmEAER ) (B
(b) CHEMENRERZHETRIERT
BRI BRE%ER
AT AR AR B RERAE B2 H
51/ BB R BRI SR R E R
161 145 7 A 2 L 3 A R S B3R R
AEBANEERZSEYENE AR

GEETT R

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'
Definition of Material?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations'

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
Taxes'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

| Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective date has now been

deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments continue to be

permitted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17
“Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-
of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies
cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and
an interest portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to
be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option
to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12, Income
Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect the effects of

uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether to
consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
based on which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax authority
will examine amounts that it has a right to examine and have
full knowledge of all related information when making those
examinations. If the entity determines it is probable that the tax
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax filings.
If the entity determines it is not probable, then the uncertainty in
the determination of tax is reflected using either the “most likely
amount” or the “expected value” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove
the assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided
to customers, investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is
not a business.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with
negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income if specified
conditions are met — instead of at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS T and HKAS 8 — Definition of Material

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement
of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to

influence decisions made by the primary users.

Amendments to HKAS 28

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-term
interests (“LTI") in associates or joint ventures which form
part of the net investment in the associates or joint ventures
and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied to these LTI before the
impairment losses guidance within HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle — Amendments to
HKFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 3 which
clarifies that when a joint operator of a business obtains control
over a joint operation, this is a business combination achieved in
stages and the previously held equity interest should therefore be
remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle — Amendments to
HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they
are currently unclear. They include amendments to HKFAS 12
which clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends are
recognised consistently with the transactions that generated the
distributable profits, either in profit or loss, other comprehensive

income or directly in equity.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of

Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely when
the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business
the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated
investors' interests in the joint venture or associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial changes to the Group's
accounting policies and financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the "HKFRS") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties which
are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

During the year, the Group incurred a net loss of HK$187,435,000
attributable to owners of the Company and at the end of reporting
period, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$268,981,000. The Group had bank loans and other loans
of HK$196,915,000 and HKS$257,428,000 at 31 December 2018,
which would request consents from various banks and financial
institutions on the annual renewal of relevant facilities in the
coming twelve months. The Group is dependent upon the
financial support from the banks and financial institutions to meet
its financial obligations. There is no certainty that bank loans and
other loans of the Group will be renewed in the future. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and therefore, that it may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption
(Continued)

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the Company have

(b)

given consideration to the future liquidity and performance of the

Group and its available sources of finance in assessing whether

the Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a

going concern. In particular, the directors of the Company have

considered the following:

(M

On 31 December 2018, the Group entered into a
conditional agreement with an independent third party
(the “Purchaser”) to sell its interest in the satellite TV
broadcasting business which has been incurring substantial
losses and requiring substantial financial assistance from
the Group for its development to build up customer
bases. It has been agreed that, subject to the completion
of the conditions in the agreement, the Purchaser will
assume all rights, liabilities and obligations of the satellite
TV broadcasting business arising or accruing on and after
1 January 2019. Upon the completion of this proposed
disposal, it will relieve the financial burden of the Group.
Details of this proposed disposal are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 31 December 2018;

The Group maintains good relationship with major banks
and financial institutions providing finance or facilities
to the Group and the Group had successfully renewed
its banking facilities based on past experience. The
Group has successfully renewed its banking facilities of
NTD30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,685,000)
and US$14,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$109,633,000) and other loans of US$30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$234,927,000) after 31
December 2018 upon their expiry;

As of 31 December 2018, the Group has unutilised bank
loan facilities totalling HK$299,199,000 available to finance
its future operations and financial obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption
(Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, after taking into
account of financial performance, operation as well as capital
expenditure and the above financing arrangements of the Group,
the Group is expected to have sufficient liquidity to finance its
operations for the next twelve months subsequent to end of
reporting period.

Therefore, the consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to adjust the value
of assets to their estimated net realisable values, to reclassify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively, and to provide for any further liabilities which may
arise. The effects of these potential adjustments have not been

reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

()

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption
(Continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("USD"), while the consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"). As the Company is listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the directors consider that it
will be more appropriate to adopt HKD as the Group’s and the
Company's presentation currency.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations

(i)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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“E-NFT+ZA=T—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(a)

(i)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with
the Group's accounting policies.

All'intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members

of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(i) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the

acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit

or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets and liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”

respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition date; and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are

measured in accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
T \F+ZA=+—HLEFE

HE—

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the net of the acquisition-date fair value amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the
basis specified in another standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is recognised in profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations

(Continued)

(i) Business combinations (Continued)
If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associate
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group'’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately

in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an
associate has been impaired, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable

amount of the investment subsequent increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

()

Associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of identifiable assets
and liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed the
aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit (“CGU") is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired, by comparing its

carrying amount with its recoverable amount.

1 30 Sandmartin International Holdings Limited / 2018 Annual Report
ESTEERZERARAR/2018FH

4.

EXREFBE (E)

(b)

(c)

BeEnT (&)
E-REEERRASENE S T
TR (PIMHERBEREE) - ~&E
EERBEARNEREANSEERD
BRAT  TEREA M BHRRAERERZ
e NRRZAELMN IR °

[k

BB IRAATER - TIAERNK
B BB FERERERNSEAR
WiE 75 2 B #58 H BB 07 AR R O U B
B R 2 (B B 48 A 8 H P AR 9 AT 3
MEERBENRFERD -

HEMFGER  ABNEERABNA
FEBLANKEATE REESE
M SFER RSB MKRE T 2R A
WARE 77 ) B A e iE B i 2P E R
AN - FBH AR R IR B B IE s RERR

WE—REBMELNBEREBKE
B8 (R _EX &5 ) Pz AR
REtRERBE(E) K -

RERRME  WEEENEESR
ERHAIZRERBEN B RRENSE
MRecELSEN ReELEM(HRS
EEEU])RAINRENSK/NEEAMA
B HEANRERABREEALBY
REMEEREEEANRESRA - &
PEBEBNRASELABENNSFAEN
RBUR % B AL RE IR E I B SR
ETREAD  BERESEER KD
SRETHR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

e

4.

“E-NFT+ZA=T—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to
each asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset
will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below
its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in use
(if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

4.

EXEFBE(E)

(o)

(d)

e (&)
ARV REEANRBRELENEEM
E EESERBNREELFMRNZ
MHEERMETRERNS - EHEE
EE&WTW@&@4\&$MW%E
SR REBBRN DS LR
REUNEMNHENRESE - Ei@é
Mﬁuxﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁm
PIDEZNZEMNEMEE - A
M—‘M§FW%E$%£ ﬁﬁFm
HE B EERERFEREENX
$Hﬁﬂﬁ§)ﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ@ﬂﬁi
B) - KBS ERE - BENEARER
BRBRAER - RERMBATER -

HERBEBESELSBNE  REFTHE
BB MEEEheE -

N

35 FE R

W%%%%f*—ﬂi'ﬁ F A e
BHBE )

XQ%? 4960 1025 TO A T B SR TS B

%”ﬁgieri;%§FaﬂTE§wu AR
BR R £2 [ 78 HA A X R % F 7 m SR 5B
RESHRE TERERKE=ZTTKR
MNZEFTH -

2018 Annual Report / Sandmartin International Holdings L\m\ted 1 31

2018/ EFTEBRERARR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

e

4.

“E-N\F+ZA=T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is
transferred over time if the Group's performance:

provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from 1 January

2018) (Continued)

(i) Trading of satellite TV equipment products and other

electronic goods

Customers obtain control of the satellite TV equipment
products and other electronic goods when the goods are
delivered to and have been accepted. Revenue is thus
recognised upon when the customers accepted the satellite
TV equipment products and other electronic goods. There
is generally only one performance obligation. Invoices are
usually payable within 60 to 120 days. In the comparative
period, revenue from sales of goods is recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which was taken
as at the time of delivery and the title is passed to customer.

(ii) Satellite TV broadcasting

Revenue for satellite TV broadcasting generally includes
only one performance obligation. The Group has concluded
that revenue from satellite TV broadcasting should be
recognised over time as those services are provided. HKFRS
15 did not result in significant impact on the Group's

accounting policies.

(i) Otherincome

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for

goods sold in the normal course of business.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing

below.
Contract liabilities (accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer.

If the considerations (including advances received from
customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the
output method then the Group recognises a contract liability for
the difference.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their expected residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However,
when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over
the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposals or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in

which the item is derecognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

(9)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the

lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred. Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

(9)

(iii)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

e

4.

“E-N\F+ZA=T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of currency translation reserve (attributed to non-

controlling interests as appropriate).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-

controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 July 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Retirement benefit costs

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) and
the state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates defined benefit pension plans which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund for
employees of the Group’s certain entities which are operating in
India. The benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected
unit credit actuarial valuation method.

Re-measurements arising from defined benefit pension plans,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of financial position with a
corresponding debit or credit to re-measurement gains and losses
on defined benefit plans through other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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“E-NFT+ZA=T—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss by
function:

—  service costs comprising current service costs, past-service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

— net interest expense or income.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

—  the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

— the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related
costs; or

—  the date of termination benefits.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in an associate, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the above general
principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner
as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items recognised
directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets

U]

(i)

(i)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset
is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BEZT - \FT-A=tHLHFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(I) Intangible assets (Continued)
(ii) Research and development expenditure (Continued)

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for an internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in

which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),

on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(I) Intangible assets (Continued)
(i) Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised
at the fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

(iv)  Derecognition of intangible assets
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

(m) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories is determined on a first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

e

4.

“E-NFT+ZA=T—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments

(n)

(A)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied from 1
January 2018)

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation

or convention in the market place.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset.

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest
rate method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_T- \F+-A=t+—BItFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

A)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied from 1
January 2018) (Continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on
trade receivables and financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on either of
the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are
the ECLs that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date: and
(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed

to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to

the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since origination,

the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(n)

(A)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied from 1
January 2018) (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and

including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying

amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A)  Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied from 1
January 2018) (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade, bills and other payables and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest

expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or

where appropriate, a shorter period.

1 52 Sandmartin International Holdings Limited / 2018 Annual Report
ESTEERZERARAR/2018FH

4.

BAREFBER ()

S$WMIA ()
SHIA(E=F—/\F—FA—H
AR B ETB ) ()

(n)

A)

(iif)

(iv)

TRIBE
AEERBEEMABELE L
BMKBESRBEIE &
BHKAGEZERAEBY
AV ERMEEEEE
HRXAGE -

REBHERATEZSRAR
BBEKAEZERAR
(BRENEZRR  BHER
BREMENFRARMEE)H
BB EIR A ROEIZ R
AEE - HEANEHAXNE
ST RER o

EET itV IR =Y
B TR B 6 34 B T2 1A $B 25 o
32 o

BERM A
BERANEENAECRHEE
SeBMEBIHEERA I
R AR DM S WA
MBS Z770% - BEEF =X
A EER A RRIRE
WARKZEREREERA
{8 2 T B s B H3f (20
)RR Z R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied from 1
January 2018) (Continued)
(v)  Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance, being
the ECL provision measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set out in 4(n)(A)
(i)); and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

(vi)  Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

(vii)  Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(n)

B)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information. Accordingly,
the comparative financial information provided continues to
be accounted for in accordance with the group'’s previous
accounting policy.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(n)

B)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017) (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade, bills and other receivables, loan receivables,
loan to an associate, amount due from an associate,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would

be immaterial.

Effective interest method for financial assets

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest

basis for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(n)

B)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017) (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 60 to 120 days, and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(n)

B)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017) (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables and loan
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit

or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses
were recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 5 i < B

it (&

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_T- \F+-A=t+—BItFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

B)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017) (Continued)

(iv)

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other
payables and bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

Effective interest method of financial liabilities

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest

expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(n)

B)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017) (Continued)

(Vi)

(vii)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
Revenue.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_T- \F+-A=t+—BItFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(n)

B)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017) (Continued)

(vii)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding

adjustment to the share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share option
reserve will continue to be held in the share option reserve.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will result in
an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Related parties
(@) A person ora close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_T \FT-_A=t—HALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
or

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

e

“E-NFT+ZA=T—HLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

Except for those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
following is the critical judgment, apart from those involving estimations
(see below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies and that has the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties situated in the PRC with carrying amount of
HK$149,738,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$73,681,000) are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time, rather than through sale; therefore, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
such investment properties are recovered through sale is rebutted.
As a result, the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on land
appreciation tax on changes in fair value of these investment properties
but has only recognised deferred taxes on enterprise income tax.

5.

RS HER AT TAREERY
EBRRR

FERREENEHBRE  EEAWEER
H At AR M E R B AR S H (R
B fht BB - A BARBE S8
R REMRRARENERTEL - BIK
,ﬂ%rlbﬁﬁMﬁzgﬁﬁ+o

AN ERIR S RIS - e
SHEE OIS ATE R RIE (TS ATHMR - AR
R BEET - MHISETRE B AR A
B B ERNE TS AT RA KRR RR A B E
57 -

P& & 5t IR 2 BA R H I
BRIt E B IHRRE M T REESN - AT
REFNERANEESEER - BRF A

B HIERSN (R T - BB E IREL T 51 HIE -
HUGEVBRRNERRLBTEERE
K -

BREYZERELFIE

M EUNRFERAUAENREMEELEN
BEBEBEEBEIEEHREEEMS - AAF
EECENAEENREMERS  BmAN
SER-_ZE-N\F+-A=+T—HEEEAR
149,738,000 7T (=& —+4F : 73,681,000 77T )
R ERE TIREMET ARBREOHERE
(ﬁﬁ?Fﬁﬁ%)/ﬁﬁEZTxéfwﬁﬁﬁm,EK*B D
EANZABEENEERNFE - Al - AR
%%E@m&éﬁi@%@%@ﬁ E&ﬁ%%»@%ﬂﬁz
BIMREZCHER - Bt - AEEWERKRE

MENAFEEBMELE 2 T IRERBER
EEERTE - MERCEAMESHRERELTH
g o

2018 Annual Report / Sandmartin International Holdings L\m\ted 1 65

2018/ EFTEBRERARR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Impairment loss on receivables (including trade and other receivables) and

loan to and amount due from an associate

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all
categories of financial assets requires judgment, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,

changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each end of the reporting period, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected
life between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes
quantitative and qualitative information and also, forward-looking
analysis.

1 66 Sandmartin International Holdings Limited / 2018 Annual Report

EETEBRERBRAR/ 20184 #H

AESTHHABRMATTABERN
FERF (&)

fEEt TAMEENEERIR

PATS 53508 B R R H) £ 2R MR RS BR bt
THRARENEMEBZRR - FEANT &
BEREHEERAMSBELERRARNEANR

B

FEW TR (B 1A E SRR R E M FEW KR )
K 7] — 1B & 2 Al (R ey Bk K JE e — [T &
2 Al IR B9 B (E S 1R
BREZEMBEHREENFEIREMERRNE
BMEEETREBIETEAFELHE - FH2
£ 7 2 R (B B 18 e AT A 15 & e O K 08 48 00
B HIARRBERENSENREENRBAMG
Ao WEEFIXZHERERES  ETARNE
BRI B BUAEL TRZE R -

REREMER - AEESHBEHHARSA
M= 2R Az MR FHAEENE
MRBAEITILE - ARHEB T HERAREER
kBB REILN - NEE LI EE EAERE
RBAMNHBEKRARE DM ANEERE
XFEENERN  ETEEEENELEER N
K BIEE AT -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill, intangible assets, and property, plant
and equipment

Determining whether goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use
of the CGUs of (1) the business of satellite TV equipment and antenna
conducted by Pro Brand Technology, Inc. (“PBT") and (2) the business of
satellite TV broadcasting conducted by My HD Media FZ LLC (“MyHD"),
to which goodwill, intangible assets, and property, plant and equipment
have been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The
discount rate represents rate that reflects current market assessments
of the value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which
future cash flows estimates have not been adjusted. Where the future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of goodwill was
HK$10,208,000 (2017: HK$108,297,000), net of accumulated impairment
loss of HK$209,387,000 (2017: HK$111,744,000), and the carrying amount
of related intangible asset and property, plant and equipment for these
CGUs were HKS$13,165,000 (2017: HK$17,368,000) and HKS$69,488,000
(2017: HK$90,250,000), respectively. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 17.

RS HE R AT FHMEREN
FERF(E)

AT THBAEENEERE (F)

BE BIEEELRYE  BEREE G
ETHE BEFEENRYE BERK
RERER  AHOFEERIBERRE
B (RABEREERAFR*([BERHR]) (Pro
Brand Technology, Inc) & &) R Q)BT 2 TR E
FEE 7% (B My HD Media FZ LLC ([MyHD ] ) & &)
ReEEBUNFERER BREBESE
e BEEEARYME  BERSRE - E
FREER  A5BEAGTEHEReELS
UFERRBERERGENITIREAGTER
B RERBAIRYAE RIS ENEEE
BEREE(EARBESREMTRIEFAE) S
ERBAFE - WARRREREDNIEE - 8
AEEEAEARESE RZ2E—N\F+=
A=+—H &Z8KRE 2% 102080005
TT(=ZF—+ 4 :108297,000/8 7t ) & A &
B 2 5t 6 1B &5 18 209,387,000/8 Tt ( =T — +
F:111,74400087T) * M SHESEELEEN
MEREREEARYE  BERZHEHE
& A5 B A13,1650008 T (—F —+4F -
17,368,000 7T ) 569,488,000/ 7T ( —F —+4F :
90,250,000 7T ) © 5+ & I YK [B] & §E H) 5F 1F P M
FEI7THE -

* For identification purpose only » e

2018 Annual Report / Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 1 67
2018 F W/ BE T BHFIZERBR AR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Write-down of inventories

Provision for slow-moving inventories is made based on estimated net
realisable value of inventories. The assessment of the provision amount
required involves management judgment and estimates in identifying
obsolete and slow-moving inventories and estimate relevant market
values for those inventories identified. Where the actual outcome
or expectation in future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of inventories and provision
charge/written back in the period in which the estimate has been
changed. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of inventories
was HKS$143,308,000 (2017: HK$258,428,000), and accumulated
allowance of inventories of HK$23,921,000 (2017: HK$46,691,000) was
recognised as at 31 December 2018.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves significant judgment in
determining the amount of the provision and the timing of payment.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
expense is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises taxes based on estimates of the likely outcome with reference
to current tax laws and practices. Where the final tax outcome of these
transactions is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the year in which such determination is made. Deferred tax assets
relating to certain deductible temporary differences and tax losses will
be recognised when management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is
different from the originally estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax expense in the period

in which such estimate is changed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

6. REVENUE
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold, less returns and discounts, and services provided by the Group to
outside customers during the year. An analysis of the Group's revenue is

6. Wz
WAL BAEEAIBESHEE R RIE
4 BR 7% T B U 2 FE U 60 2008 (B IR B & R 47
) o REEHWEHFTIMT

as follows:
2018 2017
—E-—N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T T
Sales of goods HEEm 1,277,948 1,477,757
Service income PR 75 U A 22,410 67,081
1,300,358 1,544,838

The following table provides information about trade and bills
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

TRIEHAARWE SRR EREERIA KK
BEFAUNANRENES -

31 December 1 January

2018 2018

—E2-NEF AN

+t=A=+—-H —A—H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

THET FAET

Trade and bills receivables (note 24) FE W E 5 B 3 K e W = & (Bt 5 24) 287,022 231,263
Trade receivables due from an associate (note 20)  fEUW —fEHZ AR Z EWE FRX

(Bt 3£ 20) 109,674 37,268

Contract liabilities (note 29) & KB & (M 5E29) 23,614 56,653

The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance consideration
received from customers. HK$56,653,000 of the contract liabilities as of
1 January 2018 has been recognised as revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018.

EHNBETEHRNEFPHBMMBELRRES
e BE_T—N\F+TA=1T—"RHILFE "
EHEE_T-N\F-A—HBANEHNEE
56,653,000 /B TLHER AU AR ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment information reported externally was analysed on the
basis of their goods and services delivered or provided by the Group's
operating divisions which is consistent with the internal information that
are regularly reviewed by the executive directors of the Company, the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resources allocation
and assessment of performance. This is also the basis of organisation in

the Group, whereby the management has chosen to organise the Group

around different products and services.

Specifically, the Group's operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as

follows:

(i) Media entertainment platform related products
Trading and manufacturing of media entertainment platform
related products, which are mainly used for satellite products

equipment.

(ii) Other multimedia products

Trading and manufacturing of components of audio and video

electronic products such as cable lines.

(iii) Integration of signal system and traffic communication

network

Installation and integration of signal system and traffic

communication network.

(iv) Satellite TV equipment and antenna products

Trading and manufacturing of satellite TV equipment and antenna

products.

(v) Satellite TV broadcasting

Provision of Direct-to-Home services for satellite TV broadcasting

in the areas of Middle East, Mediterranean and Africa.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BEZT - \FT-A=tHLHFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s

reportable segments:

Revenue from contracts with customer within the scope of HKFRS 15:

7EER (H)

AT R A SR B & 7] 2O R EF

ERMBWMELENESHREBANERLEL

W

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Media entertainment platform related products 1R B8 1R 44 S = M R A 341,714 237,214
Other multimedia products H 1’@ % &% BEE 293,067 260,280

Integration of signal system and traffic BEAMREZR R BBAAS
communication network - 1,219
Satellite TV equipment and antenna products HEERRXBERREE® 643,167 980,263
Satellite TV broadcasting HEBRER 22,410 65,862
1,300,358 1,544,838

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under

this method, the comparative information is not restated and was prepared in

accordance with HKAS 18 and HKAS 11.

M AEERVERZRFREEEBEBU RS E
BIFE155% - RIFUDE - TEREBEFE G ERNE
185 R BB G ERE 11 REYI KRR B EF -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. PEERGRE)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS DHEWNEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by RA] 2P E D BT AR E B = R FEE
reportable and operating segments: AN
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—\G+ZHA=1+T—HLEE
Media Integration of
entertainment signal system Satellite TV
platform Other and traffic equipment
related multimedia communication ~ and antenna Satellite TV
products products network products  broadcasting Total
BAAE BEER
RRRg ittt ZHERRE RER #HE
TERRER SEEER AAA% RRER EREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TER TERL TAR TERL THAR
Revenue W&
External sales YONEE 341,714 293,067 - 643,167 22410 1,300,358
Results E3 |
Segment results DELE 287N 25912 - 47,958 (228,346) (125,705)
Other income, gains and losses HilA - gz R EE 49,055
Decrease in fair value of RENENLTEAD
investment properties (1,526)
Research and development costs VIRAIEN (31,530)
Administrative and other expenses  {TB R E B % (171,158)
Share of profit of an associate Elh B E D RIMEN 14,107
Finance costs REKAK (32,436)
Reversal of expected creditlosson ¥ [E144 T — R Bl & 1 R )
loan to an associate EFEHEERSR 69
Loss before income tax expense AR Y LAERE (299124)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

e

7.

“E-NFT+ZA=T—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2017

7 REHR (&)
2 EW IR ()
BE-2—tF+-A=+—ALEE

Integration of
Media signal system Satellite TV
entertainment Other and traffic equipment
platform related multimedia  communication and antenna Satellite TV
products products network products broadcasting Total
BaA® FEER
RRRE i,  ZHRRA RER wE
TEEEER SEEER GEECES RREm ERER et
HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHL THL TEL THL THL THL
Revenue W&
Fxternal sales HIMEE 237214 260,280 1219 980,263 65,862 1544838
Results E4
Seqment resuls PEEE 30868 18335 80 106425 (147971) 7737
Other income, gain and losses HitA BB RESR 39573
Increase in fair value of RENENLTELEM
investment properties 19,580
Research and development costs AR (37,206)
Administrative and other expenses  {TB R Ef B % (177,582)
Share of profit of an associate JE 16— 2 2 Rl KR 8,088
Finance costs REKAR (27.203)
Loss before income tax expense FERY LAER (167033)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the accounting policies of the Group described in note 4. Segment
results represent the profit earned/loss suffered by each segment
without allocation of administrative and other expenses, research and
development costs, other income, gains and losses (except impairment
loss on trade and other receivables, reversal of impairment loss on trade
and other receivables), changes in fair value of investment properties,
share of profit of an associate, finance costs and reversal of expected
credit loss on loan to an associate. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment.

REDBENERRENTIMANAEEE
AARERAER - D BRFREREE D BRI S
A/ REMBELR HIRDEITERIE A
X BPEERRR - BN - Weas e 1R (R
féf%ﬁE K Bt R UG IRRE RS R - B ek
B SRR LA REFIBREEERIN) - ]
ﬁ%%ﬁ‘] N EEE - BB E QRS
A BERAREE G T —HEE R BNER
TBHEEEE o IR ERD L LRI
TREERREMENFESA -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

2REN(E)
AEEERAME

BRI ZMMBEN BTN AEBEENREE

reportable and operating segments: AN
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-—NF+=-A=+-—H
Media Integration of
entertainment signal system Satellite TV
platform Other and traffic equipment
related multimedia communication  and antenna Satellite TV
products products network products  broadcasting Total
BAATRR
RRRE Hity RRE HEERRE
TERBER SHREER BARE RARER EHEERER @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 A7 A7 7 A7 7
Assets BE
Segment assets PEEE 97,539 66,876 684 417,995 25,882 608,976
Bank balances and cash RTEERAS 72,695
Pledged bank deposits BERARITER 1,643
Unallocated corporate assets FPRAAEE 413,040
Consolidated assets RREE 1,096,354
Liabilities BfE
Segment liabiities PRAE 89,695 69,477 P! 246,406 105,760 511,611
Bank and other borrowings RORAMEE 459,071
Obligations under finance leases HERSAE 7,378
Unallocated corporate liabilities FARAAEE 84,180
Consolidated liabiltes GRAR 1,062,240
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7.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. PEERGR)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) PHEEREE(E)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF+=HA=1+—H
Integration of
Media signal system Satellite TV
entertainment Other andtraffic  equipmentand
platform related multimedia  communication antenna Satellite TV
products products network products broadcasting Total
E =] Q—LEFL/%N)L
JUS§o S it kxik HEEREME
TEREER SEEER BB RARER HEERER @t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THT AR TAR  TAR  TER TR
Assets BE
Segment assets AEBEE 136981 84674 81 472031 115,266 809833
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRE 132418
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 66
Unallocated corporate assets APERAREE 345508
Consolidated assets RREE 1,287,825
Liabilities af
Segment liabilities PEAE 84,53 75,624 7,902 200943 105,598 476320
Bank and other borrowings ROIRAMEE 393153
Obligations under finance leases REHEAL 9261
Unallocated corporate liabilities P VAN WNCINER T 92,299
Consolidated liabilities BRARE 971,033
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 7EERAE)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) DEEENREE(E)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and allocating BERSERIB NN ERBSERER :
resources between segments:
all assets are allocated to operating segments other than certain BETYE BMELEH KEWE -
property, plant and equipment, investment properties, assets DHEAFBEHENEE KT HEE
classified as held for sale, loan to an associate, amount due from NAIHNER B —HEEZ QAR
an associate, interest in an associate, deferred tax assets, loan IH RN —EE S A RIHRERS - RIER B
receivables, certain other receivables, bank balances and cash and BE RBRER - BTEMEWRZIE -
pledged bank deposits; and ROEHEFRBEEAREEBEITER
I MBBEENRERKESE Kk
all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than certain GETHMEMNZIE . HIEAE - ELE
other payables, tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities, bank and other HEAaE - BT LEMEEALBER
borrowings and obligations under finance leases. EAPEIN FTEBBIEESEENTE -
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HibpEER
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment HESHBRYASBEEER T ANSE
assets:
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_E—-N\E+=-A=+—HItEE
Media Integration of
entertainment signal system Satellite TV
platform Other and traffic equipment
related multimedia communication  and antenna Satellite TV
products products network products  broadcasting  Unallocated Total
BEARRA
RERe Htt kRE HEESHRHE
TEHBER SEREER BRRE RABRER HESREE ROE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEL FEL TERT FhRT TR FEL
Addition to non-curent assets KB 3R B & & 2,583 97 - 10,695 257 16 13,648
Depreciation and amortisation 37 & [ % $4 3,554 1,105 - 24,695 625 595 30,574
Release of prepaid BEEBNEERE
lease payments 163 - - - - - 163
Expected credit loss CREERAEEFE
on financial assets (915) - - - - (69) (984)
Write-down of inventories BERR 351 - - - - - 351
Reversed of inventory provision % 0177 & & & (21,202) - - - - - (21,202)

1 76 Sandmartin International Holdings Limited / 2018 Annual Report

E5TEBRERBERAE/ 201845 H




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BEZT - \FT-A=tHLHFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oHEER(E)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) HitoBER (8)

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZE—+H&+-_A=+—HILEE

Media Integration of
entertainment signal system Satellite TV
platform Other and traffic equipment
related multimedia ~ communication and antenna Satellite TV
products products network products  broadcasting Unallocated Total
EaARER
RRRE ity RRB BEERDE
TEHRBER ZEEER BABE RARER GEIRER AR @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
THTL THL THL THL THL THATL THL
Addition tonon-curtentassets R E JERENEE 434 1636 - 31,581 245 84 35,980
Depreciation and amortisation 37 2 &z 8 3733 2171 - 26,132 758 1,079 33873
Release of prepaid lease REBEAHEENE
payments 156 = = = = = 156
Impairment lossontradeand BB HERF R E b
other receivables EWFIEREEE 18912 - - 1361 - - 20273
Reversal of impaimentlosson %[l FE Yt B 5 B 3
trade receivables REEE (23.409) - - = = = (23409)
Write-down of inventories FEMH 20474 = = = = = 20474
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_T- \F+-A=t+—BItFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. PEERGRE)
DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH PIFREBEEESHWE
CUSTOMERS
Media entertainment platform Integration of signal systemand  Satellite TV equipment and
related products Other multimedia products traffic communication network antenna products Satellite TV broadcasting Total
BAARELR
RERYTERBER AbSREER REERAR BEERRBRABER BEERER @it
2018 217 2018 217 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 017
ZB-NE| ZF-tE| ZB-NE| ZE-tEF| ZB-NE| ZF-tH| ZB-NF| Z3-tF| ZB-Nf| ZB-tF| ZB-NF| 2Bt
HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER T TR iR TR ThL TR TR Tin TR TER Tir
Primary geographical markets ¥ E 5T
Asia ol 193,413 122786 89,768 2843 = 1219 63,893 24004 - = 347,074 176252
Europe B 129,368 9332 2731 31865 - = 48,303 68,158 - = 200,402 198355
North America LE 2 479 173429 190510 - = 506,448 809061 - = 679,903 1000050
Midole East PR 11,193 5589 il = S = 14,606 24640 2410 65862 48,230 %091
Afica #M 6,580 990 79 il - - - 275% - - 6,659 12973
South America EES - 6 5229 7841 - - 9879 51,644 - - 15108 59491
Other regions iR 1134 116 1810 1510 - - 38 - - - 2982 1626
Total 3t 34,714 31014 293,067 260,280 = 1219 643,167 980,263 240 65,862 1,300,358 1544838
Major products/services IZER/RE
Set-top box (STB) HEg 165,383 %079 - - - - - - - - 165,383 %079
Low noise block (LNB) EREARER 31,280 13709 - - - - - - - - 31,280 13709
Radio frequency (RF) i
related equipment BEZE 19,352 4838 = = = = = = = = 19352 4838
Other media EfhRE
products ER 125,699 122588 - = - = - = - = 125,699 122588
Connector BERE - - 11,400 0148 - - - - - - 11,400 DM
Cable and assembly EERAR - - 43395 45374 = = = = = = 43395 45374
Other multimedia products ESREER - - 38212 182658 - - - - - - 282M 182658
Integration of signal system BAATZ4 - - - - - 1219 - - - - - 1219
Satellte Vantennaequipment ~ HEBBXBRME = - - - - = 643,167 980263 - - 643,167 980,263
TV broadcasting SRER = = - - - - 2410 65862 2410 65862
341,14 237214 293,067 260,280 - 1219 643,167 980,263 240 65,862 1,300,358 1544838
Timing of revenue recognition AT B
Atapointintime R 34,714 87214 293,067 260280 - 1219 643,167 980263 - = 1277948 1478976
Transferred over time - - - = - = - = 2410 65862 2410 65862
34,14 31214 293,067 26080 - 1219 643,167 980,263 2410 65862 1,300,358 1544838
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BEZT - \FT-A=tHLHFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC (country of
domicile), Taiwan, Europe, North America, Middle East, Africa and South
America.

The Group's revenue from external customers, based on location of
customers, and information about its non-current assets by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

7EER (H)

i 13 K

K’Elﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁzgﬁfﬁqﬂ I (E%%Fﬁ&l) :

REBRBINBE P (RIBT P AEM) Bk s

KABRREEMEINED
BHFHNIT

Revenue from external

DEVEIERENEEH

customers Non-current assets (Note)
REHNBEF K FEREEE ()
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —tF | ZB-N\F —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA& T THET TET
Asia CEW
— Taiwan — 22 51,310 8,897 1 105
— Nepal —EHE 178,027 6,468 67,800 59,325
— PRC (country of domicile) — [ (FE TR 44,522 94,367 249,378 219,412
— India —HE 35,573 53,763 - =
— Singapore — 13,752 2,696 - -
— Others —Hfb 23,890 10,061 930 6,801
Europe &M
— Germany — = 73,052 60,332 68 747
— ltaly — B AF 10,752 30,347 = =
— Spain — A 20,156 24376 31 63
— Portugal —ABET 28,670 11,922 = =
— France = FE 2,247 2,906 - =
— Poland — K E 6,317 9,145 = =
— Denmark — 909 1,899 = =
— Moldova —ERZR 16,380 23,923 - =
— Malta — E R 13,147 7,724 - =
— Russia — A 8,091 6,813 = =
— Others —H A 20,681 18,968 - =
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (Continued)

7.

7EER (H)

i E R ()

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets (Note)
REHNBEF = FEREEE (HaE)
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F| ZFT—tF | ZB-N\F | ZFT—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FExT TFAT
North America it ==
— United States of —XREBER
America (“USA”") (M=E]) 633,267 940,956 23,374 27,996
— Canada —MmEX 26,618 33,284 = =
— Mexico — 27T 19,832 24,026 = -
— Others —HAt 186 1,784 = =
Middle East M
— United Arab Emirates ("UAE") — PR {REE S B &
([P Bk 25 ) 40,737 89,376 12 99,103
— Others —Hfb 7,493 6,715 - =
Africa IEM
— Algeria — [ & A28 519 4522 = -
— Morocco — &S 3,424 3,074 = =
— Others — HAfty 2,716 5377 = -
South America EES
— Brazil — B 2,396 7,169 = =
— Chile — 27 1,416 3,340 = =
— Argentina — PR £ 1,792 20,296 = =
— Columbia — Hfmtb 5,404 15,546 = =
— Ecuador —ERZ/® 583 800 = =
— Others — HAty 3,517 12,340 = =
Other regions H th i [= 2,982 1,626 - =
1,300,358 1,544,838 341,604 413,552

Note: Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Revenue from customer contributing over 10% of the total sales of the

Group is as follows:

7EER (H)

FEEFEHR

RAEENHER

LI

2B B 10% BB P R M es

2018 2017

—E-NE —EF—+tF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FHERT FET

Customer A ZEA 165,301 447,676

Note:  Revenue from the above customer is from the satellite TV equipment and antenna

products segment.

Wi MRk R AR ERRERRRER S -

8. FINANCE COSTS ELE= g5 %N
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FERT F& T
Interest on bank and other borrowings WITREMEEF B 32,366 27,141
Finance leases mEMREE 70 82
32,436 27,223
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_T- \F+-A=t+—BItFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FifEHixH
2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FE T TAT
The tax charge comprises: MIBR S BE
Current tax: AREAFR IR
PRC H 1,323 1,240
Jurisdictions other than the PRC and Hong Kong R BB AN AR 776 9,127
2,099 10,367
Under/(Over)-provision in prior years: BEFERETIR(BREEE)
PRC i - 77)
Jurisdictions other than the PRC and Hong Kong B R BB AN RERE R 4 3
4 (74)
Deferred taxation: iR E B IE
Current year KEE 1,603 (1,535)
1,603 (1,535)
3,706 8,758
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
T \F+ZA=+—HLEFE

HE—

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax rates applicable to the Group’s principal operating subsidiaries

for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

PRC

The applicable PRC enterprise income tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% in accordance with the relevant income tax law
and regulations in the PRC.

Hong Kong
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits.

No tax is payable on the profit arising in Hong Kong as the entity
operating in Hong Kong incurred tax losses for both years.

United States of America

The Group's subsidiaries in USA are subject to United States
Federal Income Tax at 22% (2017: 34%) and States Income Tax at
5% (2017: 6%).

Europe
The Group's European subsidiaries are subject to profit tax rates at
arange of 21% to 35% (2017: 21% to 33%).

Macau

As stated in the Decree Law No. 58/99/M, Chapter 2, Article 12,
dated 18 October 1999, the Macau subsidiary is exempted from
Macao Complementary Tax since its income is generated from
business outside Macau.

Others
Other subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions are subject to
applicable tax rates in the relevant jurisdictions.

9. FIEHi<H (&)

BE-T-N\ELR-T—t&E+-A=+—8
G - ARSI BB B A 0 R
m -

(i) E
RIZTEBREMEIARIER  FE
MEBARNBERATBEERABIRHEL
25% °

(i) &HE
BB NG BIR AT ERBUR MY 16.5% &t

s
H o
=

HREFELEZNERXMAEFESE
ERIEEE  ABEARREEELEN
i N AR TR

(i) EFBRERE
AEEHNERHNB AT ED BIR22% (=
T—+F: 34%)&5%(;$—t¢ :6%)
B0 5 S 2k 4 2 BBl FBFT 1S B RN PS8 o

(iv) BCM
NEBOBMNHERARAEEN T21%E
35% (ZF—EF 1 21% Z33%) TR
TSR

(v) 2P
BE—NNNE+ A+ /B 58/99/M 5%
FELEZEETZRBRE - BRARPM
BRRIMBARERPIREINER 18
ARG B AR PR FE R

(vi) HAte
REM A EERLENHE M EAFA
BB RAERABERAH R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9.
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before income
tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

Frig®ix it ()
AEEBIER O RRA B R 2 s
ROFSH T HATBEHENT -

2018 2017
—E2-NEF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Loss before income tax expense Frf5 %2 AT & 18 (299,124) (167,033)
Tax at the applicable rate of 25% (2017: 25%) BE AR R 5% (— T —+F : 25%)
AEHRE (74,781) (41,758)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TR MR RST &
tax purpose 74,694 64,068
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BERBTBRANRIETZE (12,609) (22,533)
Tax effect of temporary differences notrecognised KRR LR EZHEN R IEFE (39) (53)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEAEREZLNKE QA
operating in other jurisdictions B[R R B R S o & 6,469 5,197
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERNBEBENR B2 9,968 3911
Under/(Over)-provision in prior years BEFERETR (BREEE) 4 (74)
Tax charge for the year AREEHRBEZE 3,706 8,758

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 22.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+T—HItEE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. AFEFRE
2018 2017
—E2-NEF e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAET

Loss for the year has been arrived at EWMAFE AR

after charging/(crediting): B (GTA)
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) == (HFHaE11) 2,596 4,206
Other staff costs Hfh B T k2N 134,202 209,586
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RINE ARG EI R (ESBRIN)

excluding directors 5,659 9,405
Defined benefit obligation expenses AERAMEER X - 123
Total employee benefit expenses EERAHAZ B 142,457 223,320
Auditor's remuneration 1% 2R B 2,190 2,515
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BEREEBITE 26,050 29,154
Amortisation of intangible assets (note i) | E EE (D 4,524 4,719
Release of prepaid lease payments B ETENHEERIE 163 156
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFENE ﬁ =l 1,305,265 1,447 645
Write-down of inventories (note i) 17 &0 (B i) 351 20,474
Reversal of inventory provision (note i)* BT EEE T (21,202) -
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ERRAAFAINTFERAR 1,284,414 1,468,119
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEE - thg% NETED

plant and equipment (note i) B8 (Weas) (M aEii) 2,346 (1,225)
Impairment loss on goodwill R REEE 97,643 28,000
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment LEI f%&ux HREEBE 1,723 =
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables FE UL B 5 AR 3K I EL A W

(note i) inIEE’]/WTEF’J_T%(MT?II) = 20,273
Reversal of impairment loss on loan and trade BOERKERE SRR

receivables (note i) BB BB (M5 00) - (32,199)
Reversal of expected credit loss on trade receivables  # O] U & 5 R RFEH{= B E 18 (9,015) -
Reversal of expected credit loss on loan to BEE T —FEBEQE W

an associate EREEBEEEE (69) =
Expected credit loss on amount due from fE U — ] Bk & R B Y SRIE

an associate TEEEEEBE 8,100 =
Loss on disposal on subsidiaries (note ii) HEME A A/ EE (T 2,247 157
Interest income (note ii) BN N D) (5,500) (2,057)
Interest income from an associate (note i) RE—EEE QAR

PSRN ) (1,013) (1,598)
Written-off of interest receivable from an associate a2k B — B &~ Al Y R UFI B 1,770 -
Property rental income (note i) L EL - ONC IR (10,891) (11,621)
Government subsidy I8 Y %8 B (955) (439)
Scrap and sample sales (note ii) @E‘ﬁ'ﬂ&ﬁ A58 & (B Ell) (1,027) (375)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) (note i) SNESTE 3 18 (e
75 58 (P =i 4,076 (10,756)

Note i: Included in cost of sales EIE BEREEXKEARN
Note ii: Included in other income, gain and losses Miskii .  BEREMKA - K REBER
& The reversal of inventory provision mainly arose from inventories that were sold > BEFERBETIEELRFANEREENTE

subsequently during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

10.

11.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Included in the total employee benefit expenses is an aggregate amount
of HKS$5,672,000 (2017: HK$9,432,000) in respect of expense for defined

contribution plans.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and

chief executive were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018

10. REFEEEHE (F&)

11.

#) B % #4858 556720008 T( — T —+ F ¢
9,432,000 78 7T,) ©

EEZEREEMS

(a) EERBSTRASHMS
EfgEN S EEREBTHRARME
T

BE_Z— \S+-A=+—HLEFE

Mr.Hung Mr. Wu Mr.Li  Mr.LauYau Mr. Kuo Mr. Chen
Tsung Chin ~ ChiaMing  Chak Hung Cheung JenHao ~ Wei Chun Total
HEE  REH TER Yx AR RE
%4 b b %4 b £4& @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TERL TAR THER THERL TAR THR
(note i) (note i) (note vi)
GED) (Wakii)  (Mevi)
Fees we 72 88 88 140 88 88 564
Other emoluments; HEpi4
— Salaries and other benefits —He REMEH 1,445 = = = = 574 2,019
— retirement benefits schemes —RRBH BT
contributions 13 - - - - - 13
Total emoluments Wess 1,530 88 88 140 88 662 2,59
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BEZT - \FT-A=tHLHFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

EENEEME (A)

(Continued)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) (@ EERESTHRAEME (&)
Year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—+F+-_A=+—HItEE
McHung  Mrliso  MrFrank  MrHan  MrWu o Ms.Chen  Mr.Chen Mr.Li MrlauYau — MrKuo
Tsung Chin Wenl KarHeinz ChienShan ChiaMing ~ MeiHuei  WeiChun ChakHung  Cheung  JenHao Total
BRE BXE  fcde BT REH REE ORRH  ZEE MR JAX
& ORE EE XE £E 1t TE kE xE 0 ZE O B
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS(000
Tér Thr Thrn TEx TEr TEr TErx TEx TEnr  TEr  TER
(note)  (notev)  (note)  (note vii) (note i) (noteil) ~ (notevi)
(M) (k) (W) (W) (B i) (Rrsxi)  (Pstvi)
Fees we 64 38 3 3 64 38 66 70 4 7 46
Other emoluments; Hipf4
—Salariesand otherbenefits — —H 4 RE M B 1312 2% 832 - - 850 673 - - - 3693
—retirement benefits schemes  — &R AIEH B
contributions 12 9 - - - 6 - - - - 2
Total emoluments Hend 1388 7 868 36 64 84 739 10 4 U 46
Notes: M -
(i) Mr. Hung Tsung Chin has resigned as the Chairman of the Company but M FIRERER = *: —EFNAT/\BREEME
remained as an executive Director with effect from 18 August 2017. ARRER  BRERNTES -
(i) (ii) R ER—T—tE N\ LtAEZTA

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Mr. Lau Yau Cheung has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company from 7 August 2017 and has been appointed as the
Chairman of the Company from 18 August 2017.

Ms. Chen Mei Huei has resigned as an executive Director and chief executive
officer of the Company from 18 August 2017.

Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer has resigned as an executive Director of the
Company from 18 August 2017.

Mr. Liao Wen | has resigned as an executive Director of the Company from 18
August 2017.

Mr. Kuo Jen Hao has been appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company from 18 August 2017.

Mr. Han Chien Shan has resigned as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company from 7 August 2017.

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

ARABYIFRTEETER _F—EF/N\H
TNAEZERARALRE -

REBLIR_Z—LFNATNBBREAR
RAMITEERNTR -

Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer e £ M —ZF —+F \ A
FTNABEERARNITES ©
BEXBREER_T—tFNA+TN\BEER
NAIMITES ©
PAREER_ZT—EFENATN\BEZE
BEADTENITES -
BTLAER=_T—tF/\ALBHEEAR

BB IFITES ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_E—N\E+-_A=t—HItEE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(b) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2017: one) was director of the Company whose emoluments
is included in the disclosure set out above. The emoluments of the

1. EEREEME (&)

(b) EEEEMEERAL
rEBEREREMEENAL  —R (=
T—tF: —R)RARAES - BEAM
TEHERNLEX - EBINA(ZF—+EF

remaining four (2017: four) individuals are as follow: mE) ATHMET
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —EF—+tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FTHERT FE T
Salaries and other benefits e R E M EF 6,832 7,266
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RORTR B FF & 4R 156 270
Total emoluments B < 48 %8 6,988 7,536

The emoluments were within the following bands: e N T A TEE :

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAH EE AEK
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7 JT 2 1,500,000 4 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 JT. Z= 2,000,000 7% 7T = 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & 7T Z 2,500,000 % 7T 2 1

During each of the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors and
top paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. No director waived
any emoluments for each of the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017.
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